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Chairman’s Statement

FERE
Results and Dividends

For the year ended 31 December 2013, New Heritage’s revenue fell about 22%
from the previous year to approximately HK$212.4 million (2012: HK$272.1
million). Its loss attributable to the owners of the Company was approximately
HK$14.7 million (2012: profit of HK$8.2 million) which represents a basic loss
per share of 1.14 HK cents (2012: basic earnings per share of 0.64 HK cents).

The Board does not recommend a dividend at this time. Consequently, no
dividends are proposed for the year ended 31 December 2013.

Business Review and Outlook

2013 was a mixed year for the real estate sector in the PRC with land prices
continuing to rise and lending to property developers as well as end users
tightening towards the end of the year. However, balanced against that, the
Central Government has generally refrained from enacting further legislation
during the year to curb housing sales or prices. The ongoing pent-up demand
and lack of alternative investment channels have kept housing sales fairly
strong and prices have risen in most cities.

Our major sources of revenue during the year have been Phase 2 of our Taihu
Garden Court (“TGC") townhouse project in Guangfu Town, Wuzhong, as well
as contribution from Phase 3 of our Lakeside Garden Court (“LGC”) project in
Shengze Town, Wujiang. Rentals in our retail investment properties continued
to perform well as reflected in the renewals during the course of the year.

The long term potential in the PRC for property development is promising but
cyclical. In the short and medium term however, there are stiff challenges for
property developers to maintain their margins, acquire new profitable sites,
have balanced growth and attract and retain good talent. The property market
sentiment will be greatly affected by any changes in the bank interest rates,
alternative investment channels and government policy. Currently it is one of
the few bright spots in the country's economy but in terms of sustainability,
other growth sectors are badly needed.

| would like to thank our strategic partners who have stood by us through all
these years, our shareholders and our lenders for their continued support and
attention, our staff for their dedication, loyalty and endurance, and last but not
least to my fellow Board members for their responsiveness and guidance of the
Company since its listing and IPO in 2005.

TAOCHAIFU Choofuang (C.F. Tao)
Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 March 2014
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Management Discussion and Analysis

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

During the year under review, the Group continued its focus on property
development and investment businesses in Suzhou and Beijing.

PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT

In 2013, our TGC townhouse project in the Wuzhong district of Suzhou was
still affected by the continuing Home Purchase Restriction (“HPR”) measures
which were absent in Wujiang district where our LGC project is situated.
During the year, our Wujiang project enjoyed a less restrictive environment and
benefited from the deepening amalgamation with the Suzhou municipality, and
these together with the Group’s launch of pre-sales programmes for Phase 4 of
LGC, achieved satisfactory results.

The Central Government'’s actions for curbing property speculation and
investment showed some effectiveness, but property price levels continued
to slope upward and the second-hand market was flourishing in the reporting
year. Bank credit policies continued to favour first-time home buyers which
resulted in strong end-user demand.

The Group’s development projects in Suzhou were processed on schedule in
the year under review.

1. Taihu Garden Court, Guangfu Town, Wuzhong, Suzhou (pictured below)
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWED

During the year under review, sales results of TGC continuously
outperformed other townhouse projects nearby. Its outstanding
architectural design, beautiful classical landscaping and appropriate
sales programmes are the key factors for its competitive advantage.

During the year, 3 low-density townhouses from Phase 1 with gross floor
area about 900 sg.m. in total were sold, with turnover of about HK$11.0
million. Only an inventory of 5 townhouses remains for sale in that phase.
In Phase 2, there are 110 low-density townhouses with total gross floor
area of about 24,700 sq.m. of which 42 townhouses with gross turnover
area of about 9,400 sq.m. were sold and contributed around HK$118.8
million of revenue during the year under review.

Phase 3, which consists of 84 low-density townhouses with a total gross
floor area of around 20,000 sg.m., was completed in September 2013 as

scheduled and all remains unsold as at 31 December 2013.

Lakeside Garden Court, Shengze Town, Wujiang, Suzhou (pictured below)

This project is targeted at end-users who are first-time home buyers.
It enjoys a sound reputation among local buyers due to its appealing
architectural design, modernity and practicability of living features as
well as a customer-oriented philosophy in function, while respecting
the local culture and characteristics. Such success is further reflected
in the successful pre-sales result of the final phase (Phase 4) and the
remarkably high occupancy rate of the first three delivered phases.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The total site area of this project, which is being developed in four
phases, is about 86,200 sg.m. with a total gross floor area of 154,700
sg.m. approximately.

At 2013 year end, there were only 4 units in Phase 1 remaining for sale,
with a total gross floor area of about 400 sg.m..

During the year under review, 2 units of Phase 2 with total gross floor
area of about 200 sg.m. were delivered to the purchasers, generating
revenue of approximately HK$1.6 million. Subsequently all units of
Phase 2 have been sold.

Phase 3 comprises 86 low-density townhouses, with a gross floor area of
around 19,600 sg.m.. In the reporting year, gross floor area about 5,600
sg.m. was sold, generating revenue of around HK$68.1 million. The
Group plans to sell the 19 remaining townhouses with gross floor area of
about 4,200 sqg.m. at an appropriate premium price in 2014.

Phase 4 consists of 6 blocks of high-rise residential buildings of mainly
small apartment units (under 90 sg.m.) with a total gross floor area
of about 58,200 sg.m.. Construction commenced as scheduled and
we plan to deliver in late 2014. As of 31 December 2013, the Group
pre-sold a gross floor area of about 42,200 sg.m. with a contracted sales
revenue of about HK$380.4 million.

3. Wuzhong Office Building, Wuzhong, Suzhou

This project is centrally located in the up and coming Yuexi subdistrict of
Wuzhong and is surrounded by various government office buildings. The
site area of this project is approximately 14,600 sq.m. and is designated
for commercial use. The design of this building consists of office, Small
Office/Home Office units and retail space, with a saleable gross floor
area of around 58,400 sg.m.. Construction of a metro subway station
adjacent to the project is in progress. The piling phase of this project was
completed as scheduled.

PROPERTY INVESTMENT

During the year under review, the Group’s investment properties, situated in
the prime central business district of Suzhou New District (“SND”), reflected
the benefits gained from the development planning strategy set by the SND
government.

1. SGV Plaza, Suzhou New District

During the year under review, rental income generated from SGV Plaza
with retail gross floor area of around 11,000 sq.m. was about HK$7.0
million with around 92% occupancy rate as of 31 December 2013.
Due to the effects of governmental administrative measures and macro-
economic factors, our tenant replacement period lengthened a little
and the rental increments were not as high as previously seen. A trade
mix enhancement process keeps carrying on to cater for customer
preferences and to tackle keener competition in the retail neighbourhood.
A Taiwanese hot-pot restaurant and an Indian restaurant with well-known
local brand names, opened for business as replacements for a large
underperforming former tenant.

BEERWED T

ZIA B M A B E B L 286,200 5K » A EE
TE#1/3154,700°F 75K » o ROHIR

R-Z-=FFE  FHHMIRE HEEEEE
#) 400 F TR BB AL R K

REBEFEAR - F - @R EEEL200T 7 KH2
BEMERXNET - EEHE1,600,0008 7T - K
% F_HMABMOESS -

E-HECHERESE BRBREERENR
19,600 75K - WIEFA - EELBEHEELD
735,600 752K + #5 IR 4968,100,000/ T H) M5 o AN
SEFAIAR _T-OFRESRELELBEEE
#1754,200°F JTREVER T 19RIBEE -

55 00 BB 4 48 48 T T 1S 4958,200°F 5 K HGEE 5 B
FERE  EBZAROFTKATH/ N RNBEEN -
BETRNPHT VAR _T—NFEFER
ffoeR—_BE—=ZF+-"F=+—H KEEZEE
HEEEEL B2, 200F 5K AHHEEWRRENA
380,400,000/ 7T °

3. RPPAIEKE FHMNRH

FHRBUNRPHEEROBEDETR - BER
SRR IRT A KE - %38 B MR E R 49 /314,600
IR AEERERE c KERFREMRAE
PNRPRRE/RERAZELRTEEZR  ATHE
ARBTH A5 49 /358,400 75 K © I8 B AR 3T #9 3th 35
BETRILAETH - ZBEBRITBIRERCDR
[RIEFTEITEA

M=EERE
PR - AR A B0 T 37 ([ A 370 1) o

SR HED LR EIRE YR E T B ERIN R BUR P E
HY B R AR -

1. @EEEBL G THE

]

REBEFER Al HAAREEELA11,000F 5
KEIFEmE P L 0 E 447,000,000 T &
WA - RZZE—=F+-_A=+—0 HHEXHA
2% TRFITERERLZESEREZTE &M
NEFERIMALE  MEHARIMELIARK -
HPHEAEETIR  NWOARPERNENTE
ERBEZNBEFER o —MENAEE R —RE
BEBEMANANARIE)EEME  WERT
BAEKRKSESRARENEE -

WEERERAT —E—SHEH 7



Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWED

2. Garden Court Plaza, Suzhou New District

Garden Court Plaza, a 3-storey retail centre with gross floor area of
around 4,500 sqg.m., was 100% let and generated rental income of
approximately HK$3.3 million in the reporting year.

3. SGV Apartments, Suzhou New District

In the reporting year, about 500 sq.m. of investment apartments were
sold generating proceeds of around HK$7.3 million. As of 31 December
2013, the Group held approximately 5,500 sq.m. (34 units) of residential
investment property. Rental revenue in 2013 was approximately HK$2.6
million.

4. Investment in Beijing Landmark Towers Co., Ltd. (“Beijing Landmark”)

During the year under review, the operational results of Beijing Landmark
dropped a little bit when compared with that of 2012. Apart from the
occupancy of offices which still remained at almost 100%, there is
increasing competition from nearby hotels and service apartments which
affected Beijing Landmark’s occupancy in those sectors. With regard to
food and beverage business, the policy of curbing “public spending” on
entertainment has also been a likely cause of reduced revenue.

PROPERTY MANAGEMENT

The Group continued its outsourcing policy and exercised careful due diligence
in the process of identifying and shortlisting fully licensed and qualified
local property management companies in Suzhou. Owners’ associations
for completed projects were established in accordance with local rules and
regulations and thus, the selection of the property management company has
become the associations’ collective responsibility.

STRATEGIC PARTNERSHIPS

Spinnaker Capital Group

Spinnaker Capital Group remains a strategic non-controlling shareholder in one
of the Group’s subsidiaries — Suzhou New Heritage GF Limited which is the
development entity of Taihu Garden Court. With regard to Suzhou New Heritage
Wuzhong Limited, the Group’s development subsidiary of Wuzhong Garden
Court, in which Spinnaker Capital Group beneficially owned a 40% equity
interest, its voluntary liquidation was completed in the first quarter of 2013.

Asia Financial Group

Since 2007, Asia Financial Group (“AFG”) has been a 9.615% shareholder of
New Heritage Development Limited (“NH Development”), a subsidiary of the
Company. NH Development is the holding company of most of the Group’s
property project companies in Suzhou. AFG is also a shareholder of the
Company and the holder of the Company’s convertible notes.

MAJOR CORPORATE EVENT

On 5 July 2011, the Company entered into a subscription agreement with Asia
Financial Holdings Limited and Asia Insurance Company, Limited (collectively
the “CN Subscribers”) in relation to the issue of the 6% convertible notes in an
aggregate principal amount of HK$75 million (the “2011 Convertible Notes”).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Pursuant to the terms and conditions of the 2011 Convertible Notes, there is
a compulsory conversion clause (“Compulsory Conversion Clause”) whereby
if the closing price per share is HK$1.10 or higher for ten consecutive trading
days during the period from the issue date of the 2011 Convertible Notes up
to the five business days prior to the maturity date, the whole (but not part) of
the principal amount of HK$35,000,000 of the 2011 Convertible Notes shall
be compulsorily converted at the Conversion Price of HK$1.10 within seven
business days, provided always that the shares in issue shall be not more than
1,705,000,000 shares. The Compulsory Conversion Clause was triggered on
18 December 2013 and the Company duly allotted and issued an aggregate of
31,818,181 Conversion Shares to the CN Subscribers on 20 December 2013.

On 21 January 2014, China LVGEM Property Holdings Limited, an independent
third party (the “Purchaser”) and Belbroughton Limited, Mr. TAOCHAIFU
Choofuang, Mr. TAO Richard, Mr. TAO Paul and Tian Xiang Business
Limited (together, the “Vendors”) had entered into a conditional sale and
purchase agreement for the disposal of an aggregate of 858,800,792 shares
of HK$0.01 each (the “Disposal Shares”) in the share capital of the Company
by the Vendors to the Purchaser (the “Share Disposal”). The Disposal Shares
represent approximately 64.83% of the issued share capital of the Company
as at the date of this report. The Share Disposal, if all the conditions precedent
being fulfilled and completed, would trigger an obligation on the part of the
Purchaser to make mandatory unconditional general offers for all the issued
Shares and other outstanding securities of the Company under Rule 26 of The
Hong Kong Code on Takeovers and Mergers (other than those already owned
by or agreed to be acquired by the Purchaser and parties acting in concert with
it). Further details of the Share Disposal and the possible offers are disclosed in
the announcements dated 13 February 2014 and 25 March 2014 jointly issued
by the Company and the Purchaser.

On 28 February 2014, the Group had entered into the following conditional sale
and purchase agreements:

1. The Group as purchaser entered into a conditional sale and purchase
agreement (the “NHDL Acquisition Agreement”) with Onsite Investment
Limited as vendor in respect of the sale and purchase of 15 shares in the
capital of NH Development and the shareholder’s loan due and owing
by NH Development to Onsite Investment Limited as at the date of the
NHDL Acquisition Agreement at a consideration of HK$72,919,000 in
aggregate (apportioned as to HK$46,459,000 for the sale shares and as
to HK$26,460,000 for the shareholder’s loan).

2. The Group as vendor entered into a conditional sale and purchase
agreement (the “Accordcity Disposal Agreement”) with Highmind Limited
as purchaser in respect of the sale and purchase of the entire issued
share capital of Accordcity Limited and the shareholder’s loan due and
owing by Accordcity Limited to the Group at completion of the Accordcity
Disposal Agreement, which was estimated to be HK$76,100,000, at
a consideration of HK$170,252,000 in aggregate (apportioned as to
HK$94,152,000 for the sale shares and as to HK$76,100,000 for
the shareholder’s loan), subject to a dollar-to-dollar adjustment to the
consideration for the shareholder’'s loan such that the consideration
for the shareholder’s loan shall be equal to the face value of the actual
shareholder’s loan at the completion date.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWED

3. The Group as vendor entered into a conditional sale and purchase
agreement (the “NHML Disposal Agreement”) with Gavett Limited as
purchaser in respect of the sale and purchase of the entire issued share
capital of New Heritage Management Limited and the shareholder’s loan
due and owing by New Heritage Management Limited to the Group at
completion of the NHML Disposal Agreement, which was estimated to
be HK$9,000,000, at a consideration of HK$23,210,000 in aggregate
(apportioned as to HK$14,210,000 for the sale shares and as to
HK$9,000,000 for the shareholder’s loan), subject to a dollar-to-dollar
adjustment to the consideration for the shareholder’s loan such that the
consideration for the shareholder’s loan shall be equal to the face value
of the actual shareholder’s loan at the completion date.

Completion of each of the NHDL Acquisition Agreement, the Accordcity
Disposal Agreement and the NHML Disposal Agreement is subject to the
satisfaction of all the conditions precedent to the respective agreements. Further
details of the NHDL Acquisition Agreement, the Accordcity Disposal Agreement
and the NHML Disposal Agreement are disclosed in the announcements of the
Company dated 13 March 2014 and 25 March 2014.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

The Group’s revenue mainly comprised of recognised property development
sales and leasing revenue from investment properties. The Group’s revenue for
the year ended 31 December 2013 was approximately HK$212.4 million (2012:
HK$272.1 million), representing a decrease of 22% when compared with last
year. The decrease in the Group’s revenue was mainly due to decrease in
revenue from recognised property development sales.

The revenue from recognised property development sales included the disposal
of 45 low-density townhouses in TGC Phases 1 and 2, 2 residential apartment
units and 25 low-density townhouses in LGC Phases 2 and 3 of approximately
HK$129.8 million, approximately HK$1.6 million and approximately HK$68.1
million respectively. The Group’s total gross floor area of development properties
sold for the year ended 31 December 2013 was approximately 16,100 sg.m.
(2012: 22,800 sg.m.).

Leasing revenue from investment properties for the year ended 31 December
2013 was approximately HK$12.9 million (2012: HK$13.2 million). The leasing
revenue generated from investment properties in Suzhou Garden Villa and two
retail centres was approximately HK$2.6 million (2012: HK$3.1 million) and
approximately HK$10.3 million (2012: HK$10.1 million) respectively.

Operating Results

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group's gross profit amounted
to approximately HK$31.7 million (2012: HK$48.9 million). The gross profit
margin for the year ended 31 December 2013 was approximately 15% as
compared to approximately 18% for last year. The decrease in gross profit
margin was caused by the impairment loss on car parks under properties held
for sale of HK$14.8 million (2012: Nil).

The valuation on the Group’s investment properties as at 31 December 2013
was conducted by an independent property valuer which resulted in a positive
fair value adjustment of approximately HK$11.1 million for the year ended
31 December 2013 (2012: HK$22.3 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

During the year, certain investment properties were sold for a total consideration
of approximately HK$7.3 million (2012: HK$21.9 million).

Gain on deregistration of a subsidiary of approximately HK$8.9 million during
the year (2012: Nil) resulted from the voluntary liquidation of Suzhou New
Heritage Wuzhong Limited.

During the year, impairment loss on goodwill of approximately HK$7.8 million
(2012: Nil) was recognised mainly due to the recoverable amount of certain
subsidiaries of the Company, for which the goodwill is attributable to, being
lower than its carrying value.

Finance costs for the year amounted to approximately HK$1.8 million
as compared to HK$1.9 million last year. There was a non-cash item of
approximately HK$0.2 million (2012: HK$0.2 million) included in the finance
costs being the imputed interest expense on loans from non-controlling
shareholders.

Share of results of associates mainly represented the profit contributed by
Beijing Landmark to the Group for the year of approximately HK$19.8 million
(2012: HK$20.4 million).

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the loss attributable to the owners
of the Company was approximately HK$14.7 million (2012: profit of HK$8.2
million) which represents a basic loss per share of 1.14 HK cents (2012: basic
earnings per share of 0.64 HK cents).

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Gearing

Cash and bank balances as at 31 December 2013 amounted to approximately
HK$435.8 million (2012: HK$291.0 million).

The Group had total bank borrowings of approximately HK$80.5 million as at
31 December 2013 (2012: HK$122.5 million). Borrowings classified as current
liabilities were approximately HK$85.2 million (2012: HK$219.5 million) and
the Group’s gearing ratio as at 31 December 2013 was approximately 8% (2012:
12%), which was based on total bank borrowings to total equity.

Current, Total and Net Assets

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had current assets of approximately
HK$1,343.0 million (2012: HK$1,088.0 million) and current liabilities of
approximately HK$655.7 million (2012: HK$447.5 million) which represented
an increase in net current assets from approximately HK$640.5 million as at
31 December 2012 to approximately HK$687.3 million as at 31 December
2013.

As at 31 December 2013, the Group recorded total assets of approximately
HK$1,876.8 million (2012: HK$1,616.6 million) and total liabilities of
approximately HK$805.9 million (2012: HK$589.0 million), representing a debt
ratio (total liabilities over total assets) of approximately 43% (2012: 36%). Net
assets of the Group were approximately HK$1,070.9 million as at 31 December
2013 (2012: HK$1,027.6 million).

All land fees for all the land acquired for development by the Group have been
fully paid.

The Group is able to utilise its internal reserves and debt financing to meet the
funding requirements when opportunities for land acquisition arise.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWED

Charge on Assets

As at 31 December 2013, bank loans of approximately HK$57.0 million were
secured by certain of the Group’s land and buildings and investment properties
of approximately HK$37.5 million and HK$167.7 million respectively.

As at 31 December 2012, bank loans of approximately HK$89.2 million were
secured by certain of the Group’s land and buildings and properties held
under development of approximately HK$38.3 million and HK$71.6 million
respectively.

Contingent Liabilities

The Directors considered that there were no material contingent liabilities as at
31 December 2013.

Exposure to Fluctuations in Exchange Rates and Related Hedges

The Group’s monetary assets, loans and transactions are principally
denominated in Renminbi, Hong Kong dollars and US dollars. During the year
under review, there was no significant fluctuation in the exchange rates of these
three currencies apart from the appreciation of currency of Renminbi against
US dollars and Hong Kong dollars. The Group did not engage in any derivative
activities and did not commit to any financial instruments to hedge its statement
of financial position exposure for the years ended 31 December 2013 and
2012. Nevertheless, any appreciation in the currency value of Renminbi against
Hong Kong dollars will contribute positively to the Group’s results.

Treasury Policies and Capital Structure

The Group adopts a prudent approach with respect to treasury and funding
policies, with a focus on risk management and transactions that are directly
related to the underlying business of the Group.

Employees

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had a staff roster of 99 (2012: 103), of
which 72 (2012: 75) employees were based in the mainland China and 27
(2012: 28) employees in Hong Kong SAR. The remuneration of employees
was in line with the market trends and commensurate to the levels of pay in
the industry. Remuneration of the Group’s employees includes basic salaries,
bonuses and long-term incentives such as the granting of share options within
an approved scheme.
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Corporate Social Responsibility (“CSR”)

New Heritage engages in charitable activities in Hong Kong throughout the
year, participating mainly in Community Chest organised events. In 2012,
our Group’s Suzhou offices made a donation to the Chi Heng Foundation and
during the year under review, we made another donation but this time with
the Vice Chairman’s participation at their Walk for Chalk activity in Qingdao on
the mainland. It was a moving experience to interact directly with the children
being helped, and especially encouraging to listen firsthand to those who had
completed their education, grown up and joined the workforce and give a
personal testimonial on how the Foundation helped them and their families
through education and care.

Corporate Social Responsibility
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The debate goes on regarding costs and benefits of long-term CSR
commitments by the Group, which may not necessarily ensure long-term
corporate success. However, the positive impact on youth education and
care could not be mistaken and the potentially direct positive impact on the
community.

Community Responsibility

The Community Chest of Hong Kong continues to organise events in which the
Group’s staff continues to participate, such as Skip Lunch Day, Green Day,
Dress Casual Day and Love Teeth Day. The Group's staff also continues to
support the sale of annual raffle tickets from church institutions.
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Corporate Social Responsibility
TrELSEE

Environmental Responsibility

During the years from 2012 to 2013, when construction of TGC Phase 2 and
Phase 3 (villas) and LGC Phase 3 (low rise buildings) were in full swing, solar-
powered water heaters and external sun shade blenders were designed into
these projects to comply with the required building laws for low rise buildings
and to provide energy savings, as well as insulation against the winter cold and
summer heat. On a more aesthetic but cost savings side, artificial stone texture
paints, considered a green building material, were applied to replace some of
the real stone works.

In 2013, when we started building Phase 4 high rises in LGC, building
regulations allowed only sliding type or top hung type windows, with swinging
panes restricted to less than 30 degrees opening for security and safety
purposes. Fortunately, these two types of windows did not affect the basic
elevations of the building after our design team found the balance between
compliance and cost savings.

Video-conferencing is still effectively used between our Hong Kong and Suzhou
offices and has minimised the carbon footprint associated with frequent
overseas travel.

History

Suzhou'’s development really got started in 1995 when our Chairman sponsored
and brought world renown academic and experienced professional parties
together with local talent and authorities in a workshop and design studio at
two different times, conclusively documented in two enduring and captivating
publications in 1996 entitled, “Suzhou: Shaping an Ancient City for the New
China” by EDAW/Pei, and in 1997, “One Body, Two Wings’ Redevelopment in
China” by Peter G. Rowe, Harvard Graduate School of Design.

Past Awards

2013: Wujiang District Major Taxpayer 2013 granted by Suzhou
Wujiang District Government

Wuzhong District Major Taxpayer 2013 granted by Suzhou
Wuzhong District Government

2012: Wujiang District Major Taxpayer 2012 granted by Suzhou
Wujiang District Government

Wujiang District Shengze Town Real Estate Advanced Unit
2012 granted by Suzhou Wujiang District Shengze Town

Government

Wuzhong District Major Taxpayer 2012 granted by Suzhou
Wuzhong District Government

2004 Key enterprise invested by overseas Chinese, HK & Macau

2000: Honour Award for Architecture (The American Institute of
Architects Hong Kong Chapter)

1998: Certificate of Merit (Suzhou Garden Villa Phase 111)
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Internships

2008

Students from Singapore Management University interning in property
management activities in Suzhou Garden Villa Development & Management
Co., Ltd..

2009

Students from Singapore Management University interning in property
management activities in Suzhou Garden Villa Development & Management
Co., Ltd..

2011

Students from Manchester University and Malvern College interning in real
estate project activities in Suzhou Garden Villa Development & Management
Co., Ltd., and design related activities in the Suzhou Institute of Architectural
Design Co., Ltd, and Futurepolis (Suzhou).

2012-2013

There were no suitable candidates for internship programmes in 2012 and
2013 although some general enquiries were received.

Employer’s Responsibility

Life quality is the good balance Hong Kong based employees of the Group strive
for between work, health and social activity and adopting a five-day work week
since 2008 has effectively supported it.

Staff in Suzhou were in good spirits as Senior Executives joined them for the
Annual Dinner at the beginning of the year. Christmas lunch and a Lucky Draw
was held in Hong Kong for the usual end of year festivities.

The Group continues to provide a comprehensive medical insurance plan for its
Hong Kong staff.

Unlike most other public listed companies which usually restrict share options
to directors and senior management, share options have been offered by the
Group to all levels of staff in Hong Kong, when Stock Exchange compliance
restrictions are met on when such options can be granted, and there is no
adverse impact on the Company’s profitability due to the costs associated with
issuing share options.

The staff's provident fund scheme in Hong Kong has also been exceeding
minimum statutory requirements for the MPF Scheme as the Group voluntarily
contributes extra funding to this effect.

Corporate Governance

In the year under review, a qualified professional third party was engaged to
perform an Internal Control Review (“ICR”) on the Company in a specified area
for the relevant Board committee’s review.

A code of conduct is outlined in the Company’s staff handbook under the
section entitled “Rules, Ethics & Discipline”.

The principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company is set
out on pages 29 to 37 of this report.

Corporate Social Responsibility
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EENEREEAEBZBE

Executive Directors

Mr. TAOCHAIFU Choofuang (also known as C.F. TAO), aged 92, is an Executive
Director, Chairman of the Company and a founder of the Group. He is
responsible for determining the overall business strategies of the Group.
He graduated from ATEISZ AR AE: the former National Central University
(now known as Southeast University S FIAE}) with a Bachelor of Science
degree in mechanical engineering. Mr. TAOCHAIFU had played a significant
role in property investment and property development activities in the PRC
since 1978. One of the most important PRC projects that Mr. TAOCHAIFU
participated in was the development of Nanjing Jinling Hotel (FR& MR
JE) in Nanjing, one of the earliest 5-star hotels built in the PRC following the
“opening up” of the PRC to the outside world in 1978. He was appointed as
a director of New Heritage Investments Limited (“NH Investments”) in 1984.
He was involved in establishing and supervising 1t =& A EHR AR
(Beijing Landmark Towers Co., Ltd.) (“BLTCL"), the joint venture with Beijing
Tourism Administration to develop the Beijing Landmark Towers complex.
Mr. TAOCHAIFU is the deputy chairman and an executive director of BLTCL.
He was appointed as a director of New Heritage Development Limited (“NH
Development”) in 1991. From 1991 onwards, he was responsible for forming
EINEREERBEEEAMR A (Suzhou Garden Villa Development and
Management Co., Ltd.) (“SGVDM”) and supervising the overall development
of Suzhou Garden Villa and Suzhou Garden Court. He is also the chairman
of SGVDM. Mr. TAOCHAIFU was accredited as an Honorary Citizen by the
municipal government of Suzhou in 1995. He was also a former independent
non-executive director of Jiangsu Expressway Company Limited, a company
listed on the Main Board. Mr. TAOCHAIFU is the Honorary President of Hong
Kong Federation of Overseas Chinese Associations Limited. He was granted the
“World Outstanding Chinese” award in 2008. He was also awarded an Honorary
Doctor Degree from The University of West Alabama in 2008. Mr. TAOCHAIFU
was appointed as an executive director of the Company on 23 December 2004
and is the father of Mr. TAO Richard and Mr. TAO Paul.

Mr. TAO Richard, aged 52, is an Executive Director and Vice Chairman of
the Company. He is responsible for the strategic planning and corporate
development of the Group. Mr. TAO has a Bachelor of Science (First Class
Honours) from the University of Newcastle Upon Tyne, and two Masters
Degrees from the Massachusetts Institute of Technology. He was appointed as
a director of NH Development, NH Investments and SGVDM in 2000, 2001 and
2004 respectively. He was appointed as an executive director of the Company
on 23 December 2004. He is a son of Mr. TAOCHAIFU Choofuang and the
brother of Mr. TAO Paul.

Mr. TAO Paul (also known as TAOCHAIFU Porn), aged 46, is the Managing
Director of the Company. He graduated from the University of Cambridge,
England with a Master of Arts degree. He also holds a Master of Science degree
in Real Estate from the University of Greenwich, England and participated in
the Program for Management Development at the Graduate School of Business
Administration, Harvard University, USA. Mr. TAO has been actively involved
in property development and investment in the PRC for over 15 years since
joining the Group. Mr. TAO was initially responsible for the sales and marketing
activities for the projects in Suzhou, and latterly in general management. He is
a member of The 13th Committee of Suzhou City, Jiangsu Province Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference A EI A RBUA R &3 TS #- M
ME+=EZEEZE. Mr. TAO is also a qualified solicitor in Hong Kong. He
was appointed as a director of NH Development, SGVDM and NH Investments
in 1997, 1999 and 2001 respectively. Mr. TAO was also appointed as a director
of BLTCL in 2006. He was appointed as an executive director of the Company
on 23 December 2004. He is a son of Mr. TAOCHAIFU Choofuang and the
brother of Mr. TAO Richard.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. KONG Mui Sum Lawrence, aged 65, is an Executive Director of the Company.
He graduated in 1970 from the University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor of
Social Sciences degree with honours majoring in Economics and Accounting.
He is a fellow of the Institute of Chartered Shipbrokers, being qualified in
1977. He joined Ocean Shipping & Enterprises Limited in 1970 and has over
20 years of senior management experience. He joined the Group’s associated
companies in November 1999 and has been actively involved in the business
planning and development of the Group’s business in PRC, including but not
limited to contract negotiations with third party professionals and contractors as
well as project management. He was appointed as an executive director of the
Company on 23 December 2004.

Mr. YIM Chun Leung, aged 52, is an Executive Director of the Company.
Mr. YIM is a fellow member of The Chartered Association of Certified
Accountants, a certified public accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and a member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales. Mr. YIM also holds a Master of Business
Administration degree. Mr. YIM has more than 29 years’ experience in auditing,
accounting and finance fields. Mr. YIM had worked for several listed companies
as director or engaged in senior management position. Mr. YIM was appointed
as an executive director of the Company on 23 December 2004 and is
responsible for corporate finance matters of the Group.

Non-Executive Director

Mr. CHAN Bernard Charnwut, GBS, JP, aged 49, is a Non-Executive Director of
the Company. Mr. CHAN is a graduate and is currently a Trustee of Pomona
College in California, U.S.A.. He is a Hong Kong Deputy to the National People’s
Congress of the People’s Republic of China and a non-official member of
the Executive Council. He serves as the Chairman of the Council of Lingnan
University, the Advisory Committee on Revitalisation of Historic Buildings, the
Standing Committee on Judicial Salaries and Conditions of Service, Hong Kong-
Thailand Business Council, the Council for Sustainable Development and the
Vice Chairman of the Oxfam Hong Kong. In addition, Mr. CHAN serves as an
advisor of Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited, Hong Kong Branch and the
Chairperson of The Hong Kong Council of Social Service. Mr. CHAN is currently
an executive director and the President of both Asia Financial Holdings Limited
and Asia Insurance Company, Limited. He is a non-executive director of City
e-Solutions Limited, an independent non-executive director of each of Chen
Hsong Holdings Limited, China Resources Enterprise, Limited and Yau Lee
Holdings Limited, all of which are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Mr. CHAN is also an independent non-
executive director of Wing Lung Bank Limited (which was delisted from the
Stock Exchange in 2009). He retired as an independent non-executive director
of Kingboard Laminates Holdings Limited on 3 May 2011. Mr. CHAN was
appointed as a non-executive director of the Company on 14 November 2005.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. WONG Gary Ka Wai, aged 52, is an Independent Non-Executive Director of
the Company. Mr. WONG graduated from The University of British Columbia
with a Master Degree of Business Administration in Finance and Management
Information Systems, and a Degree of Bachelor of Applied Science in
Electrical Engineering. He is a member of the Association of Certified General
Accountants’ Association of Canada. Mr. WONG has been working for a number
of international financial institutions and has numerous experiences in the
banking industry. Currently, he is @ manager in Standard Chartered Bank (Hong
Kong) Limited in Hong Kong. He has internal controls and financial reporting
experience. Mr. WONG was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of the Company on 14 November 2005.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EENEREBAEZERE

Mr. SUN Leland Li Hsun, aged 52, is an Independent Non-Executive Director
of the Company. Mr. SUN graduated from the University of California, Los
Angeles with a Master Degree of Business Administration in 1986. Mr. SUN
is the Chief Executive Officer and a founder of Pan Asian Mortgage Company
Limited, a mortgage securitization conduit. Mr. SUN has over 20 years of
secondary mortgage market experience in Asia and the United States, directly
involved in the structuring, trading and distribution of mortgage-backed
securities globally. In 1997, Mr. SUN was appointed by the Financial Secretary
of the Hong Kong SAR government as the first Chief Operating Officer of The
Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation and was entrusted with managing this 100%
government-owned company. Previously, Mr. SUN was an Executive Director
in the Fixed Income International Sales Department of GS (Asia) Securities
Limited and was employed by Goldman Sachs from July 1986 to October
1994. He was also a Senior Managing Director of the Emerging Markets
Fixed Income Sales Department with Bear Stearns Asia Limited from October
1994 to February 1996. He was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of Chongging Rural Commercial Bank Co., Ltd. in December 2011. He
was appointed as an independent non-executive director of the Company on
14 November 2005.

Mr. CHAN Norman Enrique, aged 53, is an Independent Non-Executive Director
of the Company. He was an Adjunct Assistant Professor of the Chinese
University of Hong Kong from September 2001 to January 2002. He has
experience in architectural design. Currently, he is a director of BTR Workshop
Limited, an architectural and design company based in Hong Kong. He was
appointed as an independent non-executive director of the Company on
14 November 2005.
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The directors of the Company (“Directors”) have pleasure in presenting
their report together with the audited financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2013.

Principal Activities

The Group is principally engaged in property development and property
investment businesses in the PRC.

Results and Dividend
The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013 and the state
of affairs of the Group and the Company at that date are set out in the financial

statements on pages 40 to 135.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2013.

Convertible Notes and Share Capital

Details of the movements in the Company’s convertible notes and share capital
during the year are set out in notes 27 and 28 to the financial statements
respectively.

On 20 December 2013, the Company allotted and issued an aggregate of
31,818,181 shares to the holders of the 2011 Convertible Notes at a conversion

price of HK$1.10 per share after the Compulsory Conversion Clause of the
2011 Convertible Notes was triggered on 18 December 2013.

Reserves
Details of the movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group

during the year are set out in note 31 to the financial statements and in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity, respectively.

Distributable Reserves

At 31 December 2013, the Company’s reserves available for distribution,
amounted to approximately HK$8.8 million.

Donations

During the year, the Group made charitable donations which amounted to
approximately HK$44,000.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group are
set out in note 14 to the financial statements.

Directors’ Report

EEEWE

ARAER(EFDMARZAFRERNBE_F—=F
ToAZT - ALFEZEERTBRE -

ERRHK
FEBEEERRUENEBRRMERELT -

EEBERKRE

AEERHE_T—=F+-A=+—HLEFENREAENR

AR B R AR R R B E RN FA0E 135 8
BHE -

EEETRARBE T =F+- A=+ BLFER
BRERS -

TEREREREAR

ADFRE P2 TRIRERRRANZ SR BB
RN 2728 -

E:%—:iﬂ—*ﬁ-I-J\EI%%%&:?——iEHﬁ%%‘%E%ﬁ
BILBERIR - AARR T —=F+-A-TRHULE
BERKRILI0ET F’Jffffi—ﬁﬁﬂﬁ%‘%%}f«?%ﬁ)\ﬁﬂ%&
174 31,818,181k Mk 9

s

ARARAEEZ FERFNZEBHERD B
KM AL RARE B EK -

BN R

A Ik

RZZB—=ZF+ZA=+—H ARAZATHIIREELD
8,800,000/8 7T, ©

AEERNFAERHEZ IR R44,0008 7T ©

M - BERERRE

REBZYE - BERRENZBF BN EREMT
14 ¢

Principal Properties FEYE
Details of the principal properties for investment purposes and under EREREN T EMERERTFVMEZFBHNELZE
development are set out on pages 137 to 140. 1408 -

SRERARAT —T—SHEEH 19



Directors’ Report

EEERE
Pre-Emptive Rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s articles of
association or the laws of Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

Group Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five financial years is set out on page 136.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Company’s Listed
Securities

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the year. Other
than the issue of 7,390,000 shares and 31,818,181 shares by the Company
pursuant to the exercise of share options and compulsory conversion of part
of the convertible notes of the Company during the year respectively, neither
the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased or sold any of the
Company’s shares during the year.

Directors
The directors of the Company during the year were as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. TAOCHAIFU Choofuang (Chairman)
Mr. TAO Richard (Vice Chairman)

Mr. TAO Paul (Managing Director)

Mr. KONG Mui Sum Lawrence

Mr. YIM Chun Leung

Non-Executive Director
Mr. CHAN Bernard Charnwut

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. WONG Gary Ka Wai

Mr. SUN Leland Li Hsun

Mr. CHAN Norman Enrique

In accordance with the Company’s articles of association, Mr. CHAN Bernard
Charnwut, Mr. SUN Leland Li Hsun and Mr. CHAN Norman Enrique will retire
by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, will
offer themselves for re-election.

The Company has received from each independent non-executive director an
annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) and the Company considers such Directors to be independent.

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management are set out on
pages 16 to 18.
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Directors’ Service Agreements

The former service agreements entered into between the Company and each
executive director expired on 31 December 2013. On 12 December 2013,
each of the executive directors of the Company entered into a new service
agreement (the “New Service Agreement”) with the Company for a term of 12
months commencing on 1 January 2014 and is subject to termination by the
executive director or the Company in the manner as set out in the New Service
Agreements.

The former letters of appointment entered into by the Company and the non-
executive director and each of the independent non-executive directors of
the Company expired on 13 November 2011. On 31 October 2011, the non-
executive director and each of the independent non-executive directors of the
Company each entered into a letter of appointment with the Company for a
term of three years commencing on 14 November 2011; and such letters of
appointments may be terminated by either party by giving one month’s written
notice.

With effect from 1 January 2014, the monthly salary of the Chairman was
increased by approximately 4.80%, the monthly salaries of two of the executive
directors (also substantial shareholders) were increased by approximately
4.58%, the monthly salaries of the remaining two executive directors were
increased by approximately 4.67% and approximately 7.22% respectively. With
effect from 14 November 2011, except the audit committee chairman whose
monthly salary was increased by 7%, the monthly salaries of the non-executive
director and other independent non-executive directors were increased by
approximately 7.33% respectively.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors of the Company proposed for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting have a contract of service
with the Company or any of its subsidiaries not determinable by the employing
company within one year without payment of compensation (except for statutory
compensation).

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

Save for those contracts set out in the section headed “Connected
Transactions” in this report and in note 35 to the financial statements, none
of the Directors and controlling shareholders of the Company had a material
beneficial interest, either direct or indirect, in any contract of significance to the
business of the Group to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a
party during the year.
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Directors’ Report

EEEWRE

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests in the Shares and
Underlying Shares of the Company

As at 31 December 2013, the Directors had the following interests in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO"), or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”):

(A) Interest in shares and underlying shares under equity derivatives of the

Company

Long position/
Name of Director Short position  Capacity
EEpE HE/ KA 4

EERFETHRAEREARTANKREG RHE
BB G RS

RIB-—=F+-"A=+—H BARRRBEEFLHPE
GBI(T B M BRI ) FE352(6MEFNELMAR - &
ENARTRIEAD KA P AN ER - SRR
Prags AR EHRDAREFETELFRIZNIT
HEFRIZEAE T MG AR R MBS R PTAOREERINT

(A RAEXARGHEZRRBRETETATHBRSG

2R
Number of Approximate
underlying percentage of
shares the issued
(under equity share capital
Number of  derivatives of Aggregate of the
Shares held  the Company) Interests Company
HHERGEE |
(RAELA TR ERITREZ

FERHBE TETAT) EEEE Aok

Mr. TAOCHAIFU Choofuang Long Position  Interests of controlled
MREEEE e corporation
XL E S

Long Position  Personal interest

e &l A MR
Mr. TAO Richard Long Position  Interests of controlled
PR LAE e corporation

EREZIE L g

Long Position  Personal interest

R (EUNG: 2
Mr. TAO Paul Long Position  Interests of controlled
FRtAE T AE [S5=) corporation
R AE RS

Long Position  Personal interest
R [EVNG: 2

Mr. KONG Mui Sum Lawrence  Long Position  Personal interest

IR TR NG
Mr. YIM Chun Leung Long Position  Personal interest
BRIRSSE A4 TR NG

Mr. CHAN Bernard Charnwut ~ Long Position  Other
BRE Bk TR Hith

651,882,278 - 664,397,278 50.16%
(Note 1)
(K1a£1)
11,515,000 1,000,000
(Note 2)
(K1a22)
651,882,278 - 675,584,035 51.00%
(Note 1)
(HfzE1)
22,701,757 1,000,000
(Note 2)
(K1a22)
651,882,278 - 675,584,035 51.00%
(Note 1)
(B1aE1)
22,701,757 1,000,000
(Note 2)
(Kiz32)
4,500,000 4,000,000 8,500,000 0.64%
(Note 2)
(Hi#2)
4,976,605 9,000,000 13,976,605 1.06%
(Note 2)
(H3#2)
23,545 26,909 50,454 0.004%
(Note 3)
(H17%3)
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests in the Shares and
Underlying Shares of the Company (Contd)

(A)

(B)

Interest in shares and underlying shares under equity derivatives of the
Company (Cont'd)

Notes:

1.

Belbroughton Limited (“Belbroughton”) is the legal and beneficial owner
of 651,882,278 shares. Belbroughton is owned as to 20% by Seal United
Investments Limited (“Seal United”) and 80% by United Islands Group
Limited (“United Islands”). Seal United is owned by Mr. TAOCHAIFU
Choofuang (“Mr. C.F. TAO”) and his spouse, Mrs. TAO POON Lai Yew
Nancy (“Mrs. TAO”) in equal proportions. United Islands is owned by
Mr. C.F. TAO, Mrs. TAO, Mr. TAO Richard (the son of Mr. C.F. TAO),
Mr. TAO Paul (the son of Mr. C.F. TAO) and Ms. TAO Miriam (the daughter
of Mr. C.F. TAO) in equal proportions. Accordingly, Seal United, United
Islands as well as Mr. C.F. TAO, Mrs. TAO, Mr. TAO Richard, Mr. TAO Paul
and Ms. TAO Miriam are deemed to be interested in 651,882,278 shares
held by Belbroughton.

Share options were granted on 4 September 2012. Details of share options
granted to the Directors of the Company are set out in part (B) of this
section.

Mr. CHAN Bernard Charnwut is indirectly interested in these 50,454
Shares/underlying Shares by virtue of his approximately 0.074%
shareholding interests in Asia Financial Holdings Limited. Asia Financial
Holdings Limited is interested in 68,181,816 Shares (including 36,363,635
underlying Shares which may be issued upon full conversion of the 2011
Convertible Notes in the outstanding principal amount of HK$40 million).
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1. Belbroughton Limited(fBerroughtonJ)
/651,882,278 IR I Y & X B m ¥ A A ° Seal
United Investments Limited ([ Seal UnitedJ)&United
Islands Group Limited ([United Islands]) % Bl # &
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- B 5 % A R BB AR 1A 20+ AR A7 Belbroughton
ﬁﬁ%ﬁz;ﬁ 651,882,278 X A 1 ©

2. BREDR _Z-—_FAANBRL - BRTPARF
BRBIRERBHENAGHB)ET -

3. fRES B A RET LM MER(ZR)BRARE
B0.074% W 1% - P A 7%50,4540%  +8 R A%
e DNEREBGER)ERAFHEHFES,181,816
FRARAD (B 15 B 2 14 oK 3 AN 6 5840,000,000/%
L2 T ——F AR E R ] a8 %17 236,363,635
F&A(n) °

Long position in underlying shares — share options (B) R ZFE - BRE
Under the share option scheme of the Company, share option may be BEARA 2 ERERTE - ERETRTE TSR
granted to certain participants including the Directors and employees AN BIEESRARRRENBEA \721 8)LARRE
of the Company and its subsidiaries to subscribe for the shares of the ARRZRD - BTESZBREFBOT -
Company. Details of share options granted to the Directors are as follows:
Number of share options
BREZE
Balance at Granted Exercised Balance at Exercise
1 January during during 31 December price per
Name of Director Date of grant  Exercisable period the year the year 2013 share
dd/mm/yyyy dd/mm/yyyy HK$
R=B-Z=F R-ZB-=%
—A—H +=A=+-A
Ex48 B A THEHIE 2SR  REARE RERTE pd o323 RATHEE
AR/RA/# RA/BR/% BT
Mr. TAOCHAIFU Choofuang 04/09/2012 04/09/2012 - 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000 0.235
P EEE 03/09/2017
Mr. TAO Richard 04/09/2012 04/09/2012 - 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000 0.235
PR E 03/09/2017
Mr. TAO Paul 04/09/2012 04/09/2012 - 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000 0.235
PRtHEAE 03/09/2017
Mr KONG Mui Sum Lawrence 04/09/2012 04/09/2012 - 4,000,000 - - 4,000,000 0.235
TIRARTE 03/09/2017
Mr. YIM Chun Leung 04/09/2012 04/09/2012 - 9,000,000 - - 9,000,000 0.235
BIRIE A 03/09/2017
Save as disclosed above, none of the Company’s Directors, chief br EXXHEREIN  ARBIZES TBITHRABK

executives and their associates, had any interests or short positions in
the shares and underlying shares of the Company or any of its associated
corporations that was required to be recorded pursuant to section 352 of
the SFO as at 31 December 2013.
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in Shares and
Underlying Shares of the Company

The register of substantial shareholders required to be kept under section 336
of Part XV of the SFO shows that as at 31 December 2013, the Company had
been notified of the following substantial shareholders’ interests, being 5% or
more of the Company’s issued share capital:

FERRRAQANRDRAEABRSG &
AR

IRIBE 5 B R D EXVE E 3365 T 17 B M0 B 32
ROR-E-=F+-A=t+—8 ARAZEERR
(RARDF 2 BTRARS%IA L) EBARATAHZIE
i BN

Long position in shares B ZiFE
Approximate
Number percentage of
of Shares/ the issued
Long position/ underlying Aggregate share capital
Name of Shareholder Short position Capacity Shares held Interests of the Company Notes
RN
Fre,/ ERITREZ
BREERE R/ KA a4 HEERGHEE EREE BREDH =3
Mrs. TAO POON Lai Yew Nancy Long position Interests of controlled corporation 651,882,278 664,397,278 50.16% 1
PEEEE LT A RrE g
Long position Interest of spouse 12,515,000
A RfBiE
Belbroughton Limited Long position Beneficial owner 651,882,278 651,882,278 49.21% 1
TE BB A
Seal United Investments Limited Long position Interests of controlled corporation 651,882,278 651,882,278 49.21% 1
TE XL
United Islands Group Limited Long position Interests of controlled corporation 651,882,278 651,882,278 49.21% 1
TE XL
Ms. TAO Miriam Long position Interests of controlled corporation 651,882,278 651,882,278 49.21% 1
GE e A Simx s
Tian Xiang Business Limited Long position Beneficial owner 150,000,000 150,000,000 11.32% NA
AEEBEERAA 55) ke ZDN T/
Asia Financial Holdings Limited Long position Beneficial owner 45,454,544 68,181,816 5.01% 2
Dl RER (ER)BRA R e EmmAA
Long position Interests of controlled corporation 22,727,272
e LR ER
Notes: HtaE -

1. Belbroughton is the legal and beneficial owner of 651,882,278 shares.
Belbroughton is owned as to 20% by Seal United and 80% by United Islands.
Seal United is owned by Mr. C.F. TAO and his spouse, Mrs. TAO in equal
proportions. United Islands is owned by Mr. C.F. TAO, Mrs. TAO, Mr. TAO Richard,
Mr. TAO Paul and Ms. TAO Miriam in equal proportions. Accordingly, Seal United,
United Islands as well as Mr. C.F. TAO, Mrs. TAO, Mr. TAO Richard, Mr. TAO Paul
and Ms. TAO Miriam are deemed to be interested in 651,882,278 shares held by
Belbroughton.

2. These 68,181,816 Shares include 36,363,635 underlying shares which represent
the Shares which may be issued upon full conversion of the convertible notes in the
outstanding principal amount of HK$40 million at a conversion price of HK$1.10
per share. Accordingly, the relevant shareholding is calculated based on the issued
share capital of the Company as enlarged by the conversion shares.

1. Belbroughton /651,882,278 ik (H M) & /A B m A A © Seal
United &2 United Islands% BIJ# % Belbroughton 20% }%80% 2
# % o Seal United WM A 584 R E R BMEAKIZIES L
BIHEAE  MUnited IslandsRIAMEH L - AKX - R
WAL - BHHEERBRRLTIRBSLOIES - Bt -
Seal United * United IslandsiERIFE B 4E - FAK - 18
RIS - BOEH L5 A RFBA A 22 T 1 1% 27 Belbroughton
FrisE 2 3%5651,882, 278 i (D HE A 25 ©

2, % %68,181,816/% i 1 2 1536,363,635 HHAA I 1) - % 5
BDIRRERLIBTZ LRBERBL R R L AR S HE
40,000,000/ T2 FIAR R BR AT RERIT 2D - Hit - B
BRI A R RIS IR R 2 B BITRAE -
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Share Options

Details of the Company’s share option scheme and the movements in the share
options are set out in note 30 to the financial statements.

Major Suppliers and Customers

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year attributable to the Group’s
major suppliers and customers are as follows:

Purchases

— the largest supplier 72%
— five largest suppliers combined 91%
Sales

— the largest customer 2%
— five largest customers combined 10%

None of the directors of the Company or any of their associates or any
shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the directors, own more than
5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial interest in the
Group's five largest suppliers and its five largest customers.

Connected Transactions

The Group had the following connected transactions, certain details of which
were disclosed in compliance with the requirements of the Listing Rules.

HK$75 million 6% Convertible Notes Subscription Agreement

On 5 July 2011, the Company entered into a subscription agreement with Asia
Financial Holdings Limited (“AFHL"”) and Asia Insurance Company, Limited
(“AICL", together with AFHL, the “CN Subscribers”) (AICL is a subsidiary of
AFHL which is controlled by the associates of Mr. CHAN Bernard Charnwut,
the non-executive director of the Company) whereby the Company agreed
to issue and AFHL and AICL agreed to subscribe the HK$50 million and
HK$25 million 6% convertible note (“2011 Convertible Notes”) with maturity
date falling 36 months from the date of issue of the 2011 Convertible Notes
respectively. Pursuant to the term of the 2011 Convertible Notes, the holder
of the 2011 Convertible Notes can convert the 2011 Convertible Notes at
the conversion price of HK$1.10 per share. The principal amount of HK$35
million (HK$25 million for AFHL and HK$10 million for AICL) of the 2011
Convertible Notes shall be compulsorily converted at the conversion price of
HK$1.10 within seven business days if the closing price per share is HK$1.10
or higher for ten consecutive trading days during the period from the issue day
of the 2011 Convertible Notes up to five business days prior to the maturity
date (“Compulsory Conversion Clause”). This transaction was approved by
the shareholders at the extraordinary general meeting of the Company on
16 September 2011. The 2011 Convertible Notes were issued on 30 September
2011. The subscription price of the 2011 Convertible Notes has been applied
by the Company to setoff part of the amount for redemption of the HK$75
million 5% convertible notes issued by the Company on 15 October 2007.

The Compulsory Conversion Clause was triggered on 18 December 2013
and the Company has duly allotted and issued an aggregate of 31,818,181
conversion shares to the CN Subscribers on 20 December 2013.

Directors’ Report
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Connected Transactions (Contd)

NHDL Acquisition Agreement

On 28 February 2014, the Group as purchaser entered into the NHDL
Acquisition Agreement with Onsite Investment Limited as vendor in respect
of the sale and purchase of 15 shares in the capital of New Heritage
Development Limited and the shareholder’s loan due and owing by New
Heritage Development Limited to Onsite Investment Limited as at the date
of the NHDL Acquisition Agreement at a consideration of HK$72,919,000
in aggregate (apportioned as to HK$46,459,000 for the sale shares and as
to HK$26,460,000 for the shareholder’s loan). Completion of the NHDL
Acquisition Agreement is subject to the satisfaction of all the conditions
precedent to the NHDL Acquisition Agreement. Further details of the NHDL
Acquisition Agreement are disclosed in the announcements of the Company
dated 13 March 2014 and 25 March 2014 and 25 March 2014. As at the date
of this report, completion of the NHDL Acquisition Agreement has not yet taken
place.

Onsite Investment Limited is beneficially owned as to 70% by AFHL and 30%
by Ultra Plan Ltd.. Both AFHL and Ultra Plan Ltd. are deemed to be controlled
by the associates of Mr. CHAN Bernard Charnwut, who is the non-executive
Director and an executive director of AFHL. Accordingly, Onsite Investment
Limited is controlled by the associates of Mr. CHAN Bernard Charnwut and
thus is a connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules.

Accordcity Disposal Agreement

On 28 February 2014, the Group as vendor entered into the Accordcity
Disposal Agreement with Highmind Limited as purchaser in respect of the
sale and purchase of the entire issued share capital of Accordcity Limited
and the shareholder’s loan due and owing by Accordcity Limited to the
Group at completion of the Accordcity Disposal Agreement, which was
estimated to be HK$76,100,000, at a consideration of HK$170,252,000
in aggregate (apportioned as to HK$94,152,000 for the sale shares and as
to HK$76,100,000 for the shareholder’s loan), subject to a dollar-to-dollar
adjustment to the consideration for the shareholder’s loan such that the
consideration for the shareholder’s loan shall be equal to the face value of the
actual shareholder’s loan at the completion date. Completion of the Accordcity
Disposal Agreement is subject to the satisfaction of all the conditions precedent
to the Accordcity Disposal Agreement. Further details of the Accordcity Disposal
Agreement are disclosed in the announcements of the Company dated 13
March 2014 and 25 March 2014. As at the date of this report, completion of
the Accordcity Disposal Agreement has not yet taken place.

Highmind Limited is wholly and beneficially owned by Gavett Limited, which in
turn is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. TAOCHAIFU Choofuang, Mr. TAO
Richard, Mr. TAO Paul and their respective associates. Mr. TAOCHAIFU
Choofuang, Mr. TAO Richard and Mr. TAO Paul are also the directors of
Highmind Limited. Given each of Mr. TAOCHAIFU Choofuang, Mr. TAO Richard
and Mr. TAO Paul is an executive Director, Highmind Limited is a connected
person of the Company under the Listing Rules.
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Connected Transactions (Contd)
NHML Disposal Agreement

On 28 February 2014, the Group as vendor entered into the NHML Disposal
Agreement with Gavett Limited as purchaser in respect of the sale and purchase
of the entire issued share capital of New Heritage Management Limited and the
shareholder’s loan due and owing by New Heritage Management Limited to the
Group at completion of the NHML Disposal Agreement, which was estimated
to be HK$9,000,000, at a consideration of HK$23,210,000 in aggregate
(apportioned as to HK$14,210,000 for the sale shares and as to HK$9,000,000
for the shareholder’s loan), subject to a dollar-to-dollar adjustment to the
consideration for the shareholder’s loan such that the consideration for the
shareholder’s loan shall be equal to the face value of the actual shareholder’s
loan at the completion date. Completion of the NHML Disposal Agreement
is subject to the satisfaction of all the conditions precedent to the NHML
Disposal Agreement. Further details of the NHML Disposal Agreement are
disclosed in the announcements of the Company dated 13 March 2014 and
25 March 2014. As at the date of this report, completion of the NHML Disposal
Agreement has not yet taken place.

Gavett Limited is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. TAOCHAIFU
Choofuang, Mr. TAO Richard, Mr. TAO Paul and their respective associates.
Mr. TAOCHAIFU Choofuang, Mr. TAO Richard and Mr. TAO Paul are also
the directors of Gavett Limited. Given each of Mr. TAOCHAIFU Choofuang,
Mr. TAO Richard and Mr. TAO Paul is an executive Director, Gavett Limited is a
connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules.

Related Party Transactions

The Group entered into certain transactions with parties regarded as “Related
Parties” under applicable accounting principles. These mainly relate to
contracts entered into by the Group in the ordinary course of business, which
contracts were negotiated on normal commercial terms and on an arm’s length
basis.

The related party transactions as described in note 35 to the financial
statements constitute continuing connected transactions of the Company
exempt from the reporting, announcement and independent shareholders’
approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Directors’ Interest in Competing Business

During the year, the interests of Directors in the businesses which compete or
are likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the
Group as required to be disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules were as follows:

Family members of Mr. C.F. TAO, Chairman of the Company including
Mr. TAO Richard, Vice Chairman beneficially owned two villas in Suzhou of a
total gross floor area of approximately 770.76 sq.m. developed by a subsidiary
of the Company which may constitute a competing business to the Group.

Mr. C.F. TAO and his spouse, Mrs. TAO POON Lai Yew Nancy executed a
non-competition deed on 16 November 2005 (the “Deed”). Mr. and Mrs. C.F.
TAO have also provided an annual confirmation to the Company confirming
their compliance with the non-competition undertaking as specified in the
Deed.
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Corporate Governance

A report on the principal corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company is set out on pages 29 to 37 of this report.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total issued share
capital was held by the public during the year ended 31 December 2013 and
up to the date of this report.

Auditor

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2013
have been audited by BDO Limited who will retire and being eligible, offer
themselves for appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board

TAOCHAIFU Choofuang (C.F. Tao)
Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 March 2014
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The Company is committed to the establishment of good corporate practices
and procedures. The corporate governance principles of the Company
emphasise a quality board, transparency and accountability to all shareholders
of the Company.

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2013, save as disclosed below,
the Group complied with all the code provisions as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). In respect of Code Provision A.6.7
of the Code, a non-executive Director did not attend the annual general meeting
of the Company held on 15 May 2013 due to other engagements.

The Board will continue to monitor and review the Group’s corporate
governance practices to ensure compliance with the Code.

Board of Directors
Board Composition

The Board comprises five executive directors, one non-executive director and
three independent non-executive directors. All five executive directors are
members of the executive committee of the Company responsible for dealing
with the business of the Company in accordance with all applicable rules and
regulations, including but not limited to, the Listing Rules. All Directors (including
independent non-executive directors) have been consulted on all major and
material matters of the Company.

The Board members for the year ended 31 December 2013 were:

Executive Directors

Mr. TAOCHAIFU Choofuang (Chairman)
Mr. TAO Richard (Vice Chairman)

Mr. TAO Paul (Managing Director)

Mr. KONG Mui Sum Lawrence

Mr. YIM Chun Leung

Non-Executive Director
Mr. CHAN Bernard Charnwut

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. WONG Gary Ka Wai

Mr. SUN Leland Li Hsun

Mr. CHAN Norman Enrique

The number of independent non-executive directors meets the requirements
under the Listing Rules and Mr. WONG Gary Ka Wai has the appropriate
accounting professional qualification. The Company has appointed a Managing
Director instead of a chief executive officer.

The positions of the Chairman and the Managing Director are held separately by
two executive directors to ensure their respective independence, accountability
and responsibility. The Chairman is responsible for determining overall business
strategies of the Group. The duty of the Chairman is to work closely with audit,
nomination and remuneration committee of the Company and to ensure
that all key and appropriate issues are discussed by the Board in a timely
and constructive manner. The Managing Director is responsible for general
management of the Group. The Managing Director is also responsible to work
closely with the executive committee of the Company to ensure management
strategies, plans and performance of the Group are appropriately represented
to the Board and to provide guidance to the Board on major issues.
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Board of Directors (Contd)
Board Composition (Cont'd)

The Board is responsible for corporate strategy, annual and interim results,
succession planning, risk management, major acquisitions, disposals and
capital transactions, and other significant operational and financial matters.
Major corporate matters that are specially delegated by the Board to the
management include the preparation of annual and interim accounts for Board
approval before public reporting, execution of business strategies and initiatives
adopted by the Board, implementation of adequate systems of internal controls
and risk management procedures, and compliance with relevant statutory
requirements and rules and regulations.

Mr. TAOCHAIFU Choofuang (C.F. TAO), the Chairman of the Company,
is the father of Mr. TAO Richard, the Vice Chairman of the Company, and
Mr. TAO Paul, Managing Director of the Company. Further details of the
Directors are set out on pages 16 to 18 under the section headed “Biographical
Details of Directors and Senior Management” of this report.

Each of the independent non-executive directors has made an annual
confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company is of the view that all independent non-executive directors meet the
independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and are
independent in accordance with the terms of the guidelines. The non-executive
director and all the independent non-executive directors have contracts with
the Company for a period of three years commencing from 14 November 2011
which may be terminated by either party by giving one month’s written
notice and subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years in
accordance with the articles of association of the Company.

All the minutes of the Board meeting are kept by the company secretary and
are available for inspection by the Directors and auditor of the Company.

Attendance Record at Board Meetings

For the year ended 31 December 2013, four full Board meetings were held to
review the business of the Group and approve the financial results of the Group.
The attendance of individual members at the meetings of the Board are set out
as follows:
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Meetings attended/Number of Meeting held
HESERY BTEERE

Executive Director BITEE

Mr. TAOCHAIFU Choofuang (Chairman) TR E(ERE)
Mr. TAO Richard (Vice Chairman) R EE(FIEE)
Mr. TAO Paul (Managing Director) Ve SHIEL ST A (B FAAEHE )
Mr. KONG Mui Sum Lawrence LI A&

Mr. YIM Chun Leung EiRsm s A&
Non-Executive Director HHITEE

Mr. CHAN Bernard Charnwut PR B AE
Independent Non-Executive Director BUFBITESE

Mr. WONG Gary Ka Wai FRELE

Mr. SUN Leland Li Hsun BB A

Mr. CHAN Norman Enrique PBREEST S &
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Board of Directors (Contd)
Attendance Record at Board Meetings (Cont'd)

Directors have access to relevant and timely information, and they can ask for
further information or retain independent professional advisors if necessary.
They also have access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary,
who is responsible for providing Directors with Board papers and related
materials and ensuring that Board procedures are followed. Directors are given
sufficient time for discussion at the Board meetings. Where queries are raised
by Directors, prompt and full responses will be given if possible.

Directors’ Insurance

The Company has arranged appropriate directors and officers liability insurance
in respect of legal action against Directors.

Training for Directors

Newly appointed Directors receive comprehensive, formal and tailored
induction on their appointments, so as to ensure that they have appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the Group and that they are
fully aware of their responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and
relevant regulatory requirements. There are also arrangements in place for
providing continuing briefing and professional development to Directors at the
Company’s expenses whenever necessary.

Pursuant to Code A.6.5, Directors should participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure
that their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant. During
the year, all Directors, namely Mr. TAOCHAIFU Choofuang, Mr. TAO Richard,
Mr. TAO Paul, Mr. KONG Mui Sum Lawrence, Mr. YIM Chun Leung, Mr.
CHAN Bernard Charnwut, Mr. WONG Gary Ka Wai, Mr. SUN Leland Li Hsun
and Mr. CHAN Norman Enrique, have participated in appropriate continuous
professional development activities by ways of attending trainings, reading
materials or conducting academic research relevant to the Company’s business
or to the Directors’ duties and responsibilities.

Model Code for Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 of
the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding directors’ securities
transactions. The obligation to follow the Listing Rules is set out in the terms of
the service agreements of each executive director and the letters of appointment
of the non-executive director and each independent non-executive director.
Having made specific enquiry of all the Directors, the Directors confirmed that
they have complied with the required standard as set out in the Model Code for
the year ended 31 December 2013.

Board Committees

The Company currently have four committees, namely, the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee and Executive Committee,
for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. Terms of reference
of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee
are available on the websites of the Company (www.nh-holdings.com) and the
Stock Exchange (www.hkex.com.hk). The Board committees are provided with
sufficient resources to discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are
able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at
the Company’s expenses.
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Board Committees (Contd)
Audit Committee

The Company established an Audit Committee on 14 November 2005 with
terms of reference in compliance with the Code. The Audit Committee consists
of independent non-executive directors only.

The members of the Audit Committee are as follows:

Mr. WONG Gary Ka Wai (Chairman)
Mr. SUN Leland Li Hsun
Mr. CHAN Norman Enrique

Mr. WONG Gary Ka Wai, who possesses a professional accounting qualification
and relevant accounting experience, is the chairman of the Audit Committee.
No member of the Audit Committee is a member of the former or existing
auditor of the Company.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to review and approve the
financial reporting process and internal control systems of the Group. During
the year, the Audit Committee has reviewed the Group’s interim result for
the six months ended 30 June 2013. The Group’s final results for the year
ended 31 December 2013 have been reviewed by the members of the
Audit Committee before submission to the Board for approval. The Audit
Committee was of the opinion that the preparation of such results complied
with the applicable accounting standards and requirements and that adequate
disclosure has been made. In December 2013, the Audit Committee has also
reviewed the Group’s internal control review report prepared by an external
independent professional consultant.

Four meetings of the Audit Committee were held during the year. The
attendance of each member is set out as follows:

Name of member
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Meeting attended/Number of Meeting held
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Mr. WONG Gary Ka Wai TRELE
Mr. SUN Leland Li Hsun R B
Mr. CHAN Norman Enrique PREEST ST

Nomination Committee

The Company established a Nomination Committee on 14 November 2005
with terms of reference in compliance with the Code. The members of the
Nomination Committee include one executive director and two independent
non-executive directors.

The members of the Nomination Committee are as follows:

Mr. CHAN Norman Enrique (Chairman)
Mr. SUN Leland Li Hsun
Mr. TAO Paul

The primary duty of the Nomination Committee is making recommendations to
the Board on appointment and removal of directors and management of Board
succession. No director was appointed or removed during the year.
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Board Committees (Contd)
Nomination Committee (Cont’d)

The Nomination Committee has considered the past performance, qualification,
general market conditions and the Company’s articles of association in selecting
and recommending directors for retirement by rotation and re-election.

The Nomination Committee resolved that all the existing directors should
be recommended to be retained by the Company. Further, in accordance
with the Company’s articles of association, Mr. CHAN Bernard Charnwut,
Mr. SUN Leland Li Hsun and Mr. CHAN Norman Enrique would retire, and
being eligible, would offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company.

The Company has adopted a Board Diversity Policy (the “Diversity Policy”)
in August 2013. The Diversity Policy aims to set out the approach to achieve
diversity on the Board to ensure that the Board has the balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service. In identifying suitable candidates,
the Nomination Committee will consider candidates on merit and against the
objective criteria with due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board. The
Nomination Committee will monitor the implementation of the Diversity Policy
and review the same as appropriate.

Two meetings of the Nomination Committee were held during the year. The
attendance of each member is set out as follows:

Name of member
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Meeting attended/Number of Meeting held
HESERY BTERAY

RERRE

Mr. CHAN Norman Enrique PREES ST
Mr. SUN Leland Li Hsun FA B E
Mr. TAO Paul MREHE LA

Remuneration Committee

The Company established a Remuneration Committee on 14 November 2005
with terms of reference in compliance with the Code. The Remuneration
Committee consists of one executive director and two independent non-
executive directors.

The members of the Remuneration Committee are as follows:

Mr. SUN Leland Li Hsun (Chairman)
Mr. CHAN Norman Enrique
Mr. TAO Richard

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to review and determine
the terms of remuneration packages, bonuses and other compensation payable
to Directors and senior management.
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Board Committees (Conta)
Remuneration Committee (Cont'd)

During the year, the Remuneration Committee considered and reviewed the
existing terms of remuneration of all the Directors based on cost of living
adjustment, as well as factors including time commitment and responsibilities
of the Directors, employment conditions elsewhere in the Group and desirability
of performance-based remuneration. The Remuneration Committee considered
that the existing terms of remunerations of the Directors were fair and
reasonable. Details of the remuneration of the directors for the year ended
31 December 2013 are set out in note 34 to the financial statements.

One meeting of the Remuneration Committee was held during the year. The
attendance of each member is set out as follows:

Name of member

EEREEW)
FHERE(E)

RER - FHEZEGRBEAKFHBLBRESESTMR
AZEBRBE - SEEMAOR BRI RARRAEID
FroE S ERME B LR A ES IR RN R -
FHNEZBERRABEFTOTFMERDILFRE - BE
TR+ AT HEFEERHFUMOFEENS
TR M E34

RENGHEESLBR—Kes - BLKEZHERBR
HyWT -

Meeting attended/Number of Meeting held
HESBEAE BRI
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Mr. SUN Leland Li Hsun BBt
Mr. CHAN Norman Enrique PREEST ST
Mr. TAO Richard FRMTILAE

Executive Committee

The Board has delegated to the Executive Committee the authority of dealing
with the operational matters of the Group, save for those matters which are
reserved for the Board's decision and approval pursuant to the written terms
of reference, which includes taking in charge of major decision making in
relation to the day-to-day business operations of the Company, administering
the Company’s routine resolutions and dealing with adhoc matters, ensuring
adequate funding and reporting periodically to the Board. The Executive
Committee consists of five executive directors and assumes full accountability
to the Board for all operations of the Group.

To comply with the requirement under the Code in respect of the responsibilities
for performing the corporate governance duties, the Board has delegated its
responsibilities to the Executive Committee to develop, review and monitor
the policies and practices on corporate governance of the Group and make
recommendations to the Board, to review and monitor the Company’s policies
and practices on the legal and regulatory compliance, to review and monitor the
code of conduct and ethical behavior applicable to the Directors and employees
and the training and continuous professional development of Directors and
senior management, and to review the Company’s compliance with the Code
and disclosures in the corporate governance report.

Twenty nine meetings of the Executive Committee were held during the year.
The attendance record of each member is set out as follows:

Name of member
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Mr. TAOCHAIFU Choofuang (Chairman) MEREE(EE)

Mr. TAO Richard (Vice Chairman) BRMTEEBIEE)

Mr. TAO Paul (Managing Director) PRERIE ST A (B FARATIE)
Mr. KONG Mui Sum Lawrence IR EAE

Mr. YIM Chun Leung B R A

The Executive Committee reviewed the Company’s compliance with the Code
and the regulatory and statutory requirements during the year under review,
and the disclosures of this corporate governance report.
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Internal Control

The Board has overall responsibility for the system of internal controls of
the Company and for reviewing its effectiveness. The Board is committed to
implementing an effective and sound internal controls system to safeguard the
interests of shareholders and the Group’s assets. The Board has delegated to
the management the implementation of the system of internal controls and
the review of all relevant financial, operational, compliance controls and risk
management function within an established framework.

During the year under review, the Company engaged an external independent
professional consultant to review the effectiveness of certain of the Group’s
system of internal controls. Relevant applicable recommendations made by the
consultant in the previous year have already been implemented in stages by the
Group to further enhance its internal control policies, procedures and practices.

Shareholders’ Rights
1. Convening an extraordinary general meeting (“EGM”)

One or more shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the
requisition, not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company
having the right of voting at general meetings can deposit a written
request to convene an EGM at the principal place of business of the
Company in Hong Kong (“Hong Kong Office”), for the attention of the
Board or the Company Secretary. If within 21 days of such deposit of
the requisition, the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the
requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner,
and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result
of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by
the Company.

The notice period to be given to all the registered shareholders in respect
of the EGM varies according to the nature of the proposal as follows:

- At least 14 clear days’ notice (the notice period must include 10
clear business days) in writing if no special resolution is to be
considered at the EGM.

- At least 21 clear days’ notice (the notice period must include
10 clear business days) in writing if a special resolution is to be
considered at the EGM.

2. Right to put forward proposals at general meetings

There are no provisions allowing shareholders to move new resolutions at
the general meetings under the Cayman Islands Companies Law (2013
Revision) or the articles of association of the Company. Shareholders
who wish to move a resolution may request the Company to convene an
EGM as stipulated in above paragraph 1.
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Shareholders’ Rights (Contd)
3. Right to propose a person for election as a director

If a shareholder of the Company wishes to nominate a person other than
a retiring Director or a person recommended by the Board to stand for
election as a Director of the Company, the shareholder concerned shall
lodge with the Company (for the attention of the Company Secretary)
at the Hong Kong Office or at the Company’s branch share registrar in
Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, a duly signed nomination
form which includes, inter alia, the intention to propose that person for
election as a Director, notice in writing by that person of his willingness
to be elected, and the information required by the Listing Rules.

The period for lodgement of the nomination form will commence no
earlier than the day after the dispatch of the notice of the general
meeting appointed for such election and end no later than 7 days prior to
the date of such general meeting and the minimum length of the period
during which the nomination form and associated documents may be
given to the Company will be at least 7 days.

4, Right to put enquiry to the Board

Shareholders have the right to put enquiries to the Board. All enquiries
must be in writing with contact information of the person making the
enquiry and deposited at the Hong Kong Office for the attention of the
Company Secretary.

Detailed procedures can be found in the document entitled “Shareholders’
Rights” which is available on the Company’s website.

Communication with Shareholders

The Chairman of the Board and chairmen of the committees of the Board
attended the annual general meeting of the Company held on 15 May 2013 to
attend to and answer questions and proposals raised by the shareholders of the
Company thereat. Details of Directors’ attendance record of general meeting(s)
during the year ended 31 December 2013 are as follows:
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Executive Director PITEE

Mr. TAOCHAIFU Choofuang (Chairman) BEBELEER)
Mr. TAO Richard (Vice Chairman) BRI E(BIELE)
Mr. TAO Paul (Managing Director) PRI ST A (E FARATIE)
Mr. KONG Mui Sum Lawrence TR E

Mr. YIM Chun Leung BRI A&
Non-Executive Director HFHITEE

Mr. CHAN Bernard Charnwut BRS B
Independent Non-Executive Director BUHHITESE

Mr. WONG Gary Ka Wai ITREXE

Mr. SUN Leland Li Hsun FHL BT E

Mr. CHAN Norman Enrique PRELST S
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Investor Relationship and Communication

The Company strives to achieve a high level of transparency in communicating
with shareholders and the investment community at large. Briefings and
meetings with institutional investors and analysts are conducted at opportune
times. The Company is committed to continuing to maintain an open and
effective investor communication policy and to update investors on relevant
information on its business in a timely manner, subject to relevant regulatory
requirements. In order to ensure effective, clear and accurate communications
with the investors and analysts, all corporate communications are arranged
and handled by the executive directors with the assistance of an independent
corporate communication firm and designated senior executives according
to established practices and procedures of the Company. The Company has
announced results of the year under review in a timely manner.

Directors’ and Auditor's Responsibilities for the Financial
Statements

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of financial statements
which give a true and fair view. In preparing such financial statements, it is
fundamental that appropriate accounting policies are selected and applied
consistently.

The auditor’s responsibility is to express an independent opinion, based on
their audit, on those financial statements and to report their opinion to the
shareholders of the Company, as a body, and for no other purpose. The auditor
does not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of the independent auditor’s report.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the preparation of the
financial statements for each financial year which give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group and of results and cash flows for that year. In
preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2013,
the Directors have selected suitable accounting policies and applied them
consistently; adopted appropriate Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and Hong Kong Accounting Standards and Interpretations; made adjustments
and estimates that are prudent and reasonable; and have prepared the financial
statements on the going concern basis. The Directors also ensure the timely
publication of the financial statements of the Group.

Auditor’s Remuneration

The fee in respect of audit and non-audit services provided to the Group by
independent auditor for the year ended 31 December 2013 amounted to
HK$1,350,000 and HK$167,000 respectively.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

S H
BB EN RS
Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk
|

BEEE - +852 2218 8288
{8H : +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

To the Shareholders of New Heritage Holdings Ltd.
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of New Heritage
Holdings Ltd. (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (together “the Group”)
set out on pages 40 to 135, which comprise the consolidated and company
statements of financial position as at 31 December 2013, and the consolidated
income statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with the terms of our engagement, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

BDO Limited
EBUERREMEBAMERAR

25™ Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central

Hong Kong

FEEATHER1115R

k&HIH2518
BHEERBRARKRR

(REEHBHMKLZ HFRAF)

AR BT A T BRI R 1)) BB 5 IR H405135H 5
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ZELFENRANRE  BA2AKRR  BAESE
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ERREFRARBRREEESHAOSAMIKE BV B
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BDO Limited, a Hong Kong limited company, is a member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee,

and forms part of the international BDO network of independent member firms.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 December 2013
and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Chiu Wing Cheung Ringo
Practising Certificate Number: P04434

Hong Kong, 24 March 2014

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Consolidated Income Statement

mellaER

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z—=F+-"A=+—HIFE

2013 2012
—E-=F —EF——F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Ktat FHET FHExT
Revenue & 7 212,402 272,102
Cost of sales HHE KA (180,693) (223,202)
Gross profit EF 31,709 48,900
Other income E g A 7 9,101 4736
Selling expenses HEM (9,384) (10,154)
Administrative expenses THRAX (39,927) (55,548)
Fair value adjustments on investment properties BREYHENRA R BEFE 15 11,101 22,337
(Loss)/Gain on disposal of investment properties HEREYEDN(EE) W (150) 2,477
Gain on deregistration of a subsidiary Gl [ S ESNGIEolEy 29 8,898 =
Impairment loss on goodwill R EE R 13 (7,799) -
Finance costs Bh& Bk X 8 (1,828) (1,937)
Share of results of associates i3 N S 19,848 20,417
Profit before income tax BRETSH A2 F 9 21,569 31,228
Income tax expense Fris®imx 10 (26,230) (15,730)
(Loss)/Profit for the year EE(EE),BF (4,661) 15,498
(Loss)/Profit for the year attributable to: UTATEGEE(EHR) 2BA
Owners of the Company ViN/NE] )35 51 (14,739) 8,208
Non-controlling interests FEPE AR RE RS 10,078 7,290
(4,661) 15,498
(Loss)/Earnings per share attributable to the owners FREQATRREETR HK cents HK cents
of the Company during the year (F518) &R 12 A B
- Basic —EK (1.14) 0.64
— Diluted —#E N/A T3 A 0.64
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
meEEEWEE

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-Z-—=F+-_A=+—HILFE

2013 2012
—E-=F —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHT
(Loss)/Profit for the year EE(FHR) BT (4,661) 15,498
Other comprehensive income Hih 2wk
Items that may be reclassified subsequently BEAREEN 7 EE A
to profit or loss: ZHEA
Exchange gain on translation of HRE M E A RIHIRINETS
foreign operations of subsidiaries HPE 5 IS 30,543 8,148
Share of exchange gain on translation FEAGIRE — & QR EPIRIN
of foreign operation of an associate SERHNE N e 4,475 908
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently BEETEEN P EE P
to profit or loss: ZIEA :
Reclassification of exchange reserve N E AR RES
upon deregistration of a subsidiary DFB 2 VE N EE (8,898) =
Share of revaluation surplus of an associate’s {1 — Bt & A RLEE Y
hotel property MEHES 1,127 4,014
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax FEHME2EWE (FRBER) 27,247 13,070
Total comprehensive income for the year FEEHEINZERE 22,586 28,568
Total comprehensive income attributable to: UTATEEZERSEEE
Owners of the Company /NG 6,405 19,631
Non-controlling interests JEE R e A 16,181 8,937
22,586 28,568
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e PRI R R

As at 31 December 2013
R-ZT—=F+-A=+—H

2013 2012
—E—= —E——F
Not\es HK$’000 HK$'000
Kiat THET FHT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEEREE
Non-current assets FREBEE
Goodwill = 13 29,249 37,048
Property, plant and equipment ME - MENMEK 14 47,611 49,359
Investment properties wEYE 15 318,899 304,594
Interests in associates NG o X 17 137,922 137,402
Deferred tax assets FEFTBE E 18 173 167
533,854 528,570
Current assets REBEE
Properties held under development BRAYHE 19 457,085 418,816
Properties held for sale FHEYE 20 343,501 294,334
Inventories ey 21 67 65
Accounts receivable FEUTER X 22 166 139
Deposits paid, prepayments and Bffize  EAREK
other receivables HoAth e WkaE 23 47,543 32,486
Tax recoverable AJ U el i 3K 22,648 12,338
Restricted bank deposits SRR EISRITFER 32 36,230 38,876
Cash and bank balances RE NMIRTTES 33 435,782 290,999
1,343,022 1,088,053
Total assets BEE 1,876,876 1,616,623
Current liabilities mEAE
Accounts payable FERTBR R 24 112,179 92,197
Accruals, deposits received and EETER - BUIRE R
other payables H A R RIE 25 416,245 135,810
Convertible notes AIMR R IR 27 42,140 =
Borrowings R 26 85,173 219,527
655,737 447 534
Net current assets REBEEFE 687,285 640,519
Total assets less current liabilities BWEERARBERS 1,221,139 1,169,089
Non-current liabilities ERBERE
Borrowings (=9 26 96,455 19,771
Convertible notes Bl ES 27 - 74,350
Deferred tax liabilities EERRIEEE 18 53,747 47,347
150,202 141,468
Total liabilities BaeE 805,939 589,002
NET ASSETS BEEFRE 1,070,937 1,027,621
EQUITY R
Capital and reserves attributable to the owners RN B IR R EAL IR AR
of the Company Ef#E
Share capital R&ZX 28 13,246 12,854
Reserves EfE 31(a) 960,079 915,542
Proposed final dividend BRARHARR B 11 - 2,571
973,325 930,967
Non-controlling interests IR ER 97,612 96,654
TOTAL EQUITY R 1,070,937 1,027,621
TAO Richard TAO Paul
PR P 85 1
Director Director
B BFE
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As at 31 December 2013
R-ZT—=F+-_A=+—H

Statement of Financial Position

B EE IR TR

2013 2012
—E-=F —EF——4F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Btat FET FHT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEREE
Non-current assets IEREBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RSB RARMIE 16(a) 133,960 133,936
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments FEfFIE 408 327
Amounts due from subsidiaries FELHT B A RIFRIA 16(b) 461,762 471811
Cash and bank balances RE NIBITES 33 4,890 1,003
467,060 473,141
Total assets HBE 601,020 607,077
Current liabilities RBAS
Accruals and other payables FEETE A R H b FET kI8 5,009 4,898
Amount due to a subsidiary FEfT—FREM B A R FIE 16(b) - 181
Convertible notes AR IR 27 42,140 =
Financial guarantee contracts MIEEREL 37 1,017 1,591
48,166 6,670
Net current assets RBEEZE 418,894 466,471
Total assets less current liabilities HWEERRBEE 552,854 600,407
Non-current liability FRBEE
Convertible notes AIHAR IR 27 = 74,350
- 74,350
Total liabilities BeE 48,166 81,020
NET ASSETS EEFE 552,854 526,057
EQUITY e
Capital and reserves attributable to the owners AN B RREGRA
of the Company K f#E
Share capital B& AR 28 13,246 12,854
Reserves (B 31(b) 539,608 510,632
Proposed final dividend e N 11 = 2,571
TOTAL EQUITY AR 552,854 526,057
TAO Richard TAO Paul
e [GIFZRCS
Director Director
EF EF
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GERTRER

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z—=F+-"A=+—HIFE

2013 2012
—E2—=F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FHExT
Cash flows from operating activities RETHHNESHRE
Profit before income tax BRETIS BRI & A 21,569 31,228
Adjustments for: HEIER -
Depreciation e 2,271 3,289
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEME « BEREEHER 8 8,174
Loss/(Gain) on disposal of investment properties HESEYERER () 150 (2,477)
Loss on early repayment of loans from RAIE R IR R E
non-controlling shareholders H &8 27 =
Fair value adjustments on investment properties REMEND R EBEFE (11,101) (22,337)
Equity-settled employee share-based payments DR AERG XN HEEFIE = 2,947
Share of results of associates FE(RER & R RIFEE (19,848) (20,417)
Impairment loss on amount due from FE U — RSBt & N B 30IE
an associate RREETE = 192
Impairment loss on goodwill R E R B 7,799 =
Impairment loss on other receivables HAb EBGRIER R EEE 74 1,602
Impairment loss on properties held for sale FEMENREEE 14,836 759
Interest income FBUA (5,509) (3,325)
Interest expenses R 1,828 1,937
Operating profit before working capital changes RETEBESBBHILERT 12,104 1,572
(Increase)/Decrease in properties held under BRERPYERGEMEGEM),
development and properties held for sale o (65,978) 42,196
(Increase)/Decrease in inventories BFEOEM), R (2) 9
Increase in accounts receivable JE U BR FR A% 0 (27) (55)
(Increase)/Decrease in deposits paid, Bfftze - BIREREM
prepayments and other receivables FEMERIE (38 N), R (15,131) 14,864
Increase in accounts payable, accruals, FERERF - FEEHER - BEduRS
deposits received and other payables T EL At FE A FRIEIE AN 289,280 48,658
Cash generated from operations RETHEENRS 220,246 107,244
Interest paid ERFLE (3,686) (10,598)
Income taxes paid BEATSR (31,645) (18,636)
Net cash generated from operating activities KETHELENESFE 184,915 78,010
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-Z-—=F+-_A=+—HILFE

HERERER®

2013 2012
—B-=F —E——F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Ktat FExT FHT

Cash flows from investing activities RETHNEESRE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEME  BEMK (581) (295)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE « BEMREFSZE

plant and equipment 28 173
Proceeds from sale of investment properties HEREYERTSRIE 6,541 20,017
Placement of short-term time deposits with R=EABE—FREH

maturity beyond three months but within one year R BRTE X (78,000) -
Placement of structured bank deposit B EBIERITER (1,277) -
Dividends received from an associate L EY — Pt A B HOAR B 24,929 22,051
Interest received B UHFE 5,509 3,325
Decrease in restricted bank deposits IR S ERT TR RO 2,646 53,984
Net cash (used in)/generated from investing BEZE(TA) ELXENERE

activities HER (40,205) 99,255
Cash flows from financing activities REITHNRESTRE
Proceeds from issuance of share capital AT AFTIS TR 1,737 203
Proceeds from new borrowings s E B E 73,180 32,000
Repayments of borrowings BEEE (133,184) (173,074)
Return to a non-controlling shareholder upon T — B AREIRE

deregistration of a subsidiary Sy (15,223) =
Interest paid on convertible notes B TR E R AE (4,425) (4,513)
Dividends paid to Company’s owners [EAREAVAGI I ET 3N (2,579) (3,854)
Dividends paid to a non-controlling shareholder B —EHE R A —%

of a subsidiary FEIEAR AR R AR 2 - (3,367)
Net cash used in financing activities RSB ATANESFE (80,494) (152,605)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents ReRBSEEYEMFE 64,216 24,660
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash EXSEHHESRRSEEY

and cash equivalents -2 1,290 614
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R—A—ANBRERBREEEY 290,999 265,725
Cash and cash equivalents at R+-—A=+—HHERER

31 December REZEEY 33 356,505 290,999
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

REERBER

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z—=F+-"A=+—HIFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

AN AIRE el
Hotel
property,
Convertible plant and
Share notes equipment Proposed Non-
Share Share option equity  Merger revaluation Exchange  Statutory  Retained final controlling Total
capifal  premium  reserves  reserves  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve profits  dividend Total interests equity
BIENE -
AR BER
Bk ZHEs REER N iR
B Ri&E Fafl e AbHEE fE EXGE iERE (RERR i) & fn  ERAE
HK$000  HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS000 HKJO00 HKS000 HK$O00 HKS000 HK$O000 HK$000  HK$000
Tér ThAr Thr TEr TEr  TAr  TExr TEr  TEr  TEr  TAr  TET TR
Balance as at R-E-—%-f-H
1 January 2012 s 12845 488,664 - 900 8993% 19276 124479 31069 141,017 3854 912040 91,084 1,003,124
2011 final dividend paid BEf-E—%
FBRE = = = = = - - - - (3%%4)  (3%%4) - (385)
Dividend paid to BR—RFEERRR
a non-controlling 8
shareholder - - - - - - - - - - - (3367  (3367)
Equity-settled employee share- Lz &R M)
based payments (note 30) (BB FUR(#:230) - - 2% = = = = = = - 2% - 297
Arising from issue of ordinary BT BRERTEER
shares on exercise of share At (H3228)
options (note 28) 9 194 - - - - - - - - 203 - 203
Transfer (note 28) R (1728) = 76 (76) - - - - - - - - - -
9 210 2871 - - - - = - (3% (704)  (3367)  (4,071)
Profit for the year EERF - - - - - - - - 828 - 828 7290 15498
Other comprehensive income - 2EzS
Exchange gain on translation ~ #EHBAAEIN
of foreign operations of EIRE s
subsidiaries - - - - - - 6,501 - - - 6,501 1,647 8,148
Share of exchangegainon (B —FIBE AR
translation of foreign operation ~ BSESNEMHIER,
of an associate ey - - - - - - 908 - - - 908 - 908
Share of revaluation surplus of  FE(E— B S A REIE
an associate’s hotel property  WEHER R - - - - - 4014 - - - - 4014 - 4014
Total comprenensive income £ 2 E %
for the year - - - - - 4014 7,409 - 8208 - 19631 8937 28568
Transfer g - - - - - - - 388 (388) - - - -
Share of an assoclate’s el NG
statutory reserve G - - - - - - - 268 (2,680) - - - -
Proposed final dividend HRRHRS
(note 11) (hral1) = - - - - - - - (2571) 2571 - - -
Balance as at RZF—ZF+2R
31 December 2012 =T—RMERH 12854 488934 2871 900 8993% 23290 131,888 34143 143580 2571 930967 96,654 1,027,621
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z—=F+-A=-+—ALFE

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (continued)

HEEREERe

Attributable to owners of the Company

RATIRRE R
Hotel
property,
Convertible plant and
Share notes equipment Proposed Non-
Share Share option equity  Merger revaluation Exchange  Statutory  Retained final controlling Total
capifal  premium  reserves  reseves  reserve  reserve  reseve  reserve profits ~ dividend Total  interests equity
BEME
ik BER
BiRE FBER HEEMR R FER
B BiaE e BE AliRE BE EXRE ATRE RERN KBRS 5t ER EadE
HK$000 HK$O000 HK$000 HK$O000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS000 HKS000 HK$O00 HKP000 HK$O000 HK$000  HK$000
Thr Thrn Tér Thx Tér Thx Thr Thr TExr  Thr ThEr  Thr  TEx
Balance as at 1 January 2013 R=F—=F—F—H
igfed3 12,854 488,934 281 900 89936 23290 131,888 34,143 143,580 2571 930,967 96,654 1,027,621
2012 final dividend paid [RANES 375 Hx = - - - = = = - (8 (2571)  (2579) - (2519
Return to a non-controlling é] fi TE
shareholder upon REIERE ﬁ
deregistration of a subsidiary - - - - - - - - - - - (15,223) (15,223)
Avising from issue of ordinary  R{THEEERIER T
shares on exercise of e EERAMESE
options (note 28) (Hi228) 74 1,663 - - - - - - - - 1,731 - 1,131
Arising from issue of ordinary  FRE&H| 3 AT AR
shares on compulsory ERETLBRmES
conversion of convertible (Brzo7R28)
notes (notes 27 and 28) 318 36477 - - - - - - - - 36,795 - 36,795
Transfer (notes 27and 28) (Ko7 R28) - 1076 (656)  (420) - - - - - - - - -
32 3926 (6%) (420 - . . - ) (257) 3598 (15223) 20730
(Loss)/Profit for the year E(58)/ B - - - - - - = - (14739) - (14739 10078  (4,661)
Other comprehensive income  Eft 2 Y
Exchange gain on translation },%M TE’J%M\%’W
of foreign operations of B0 S s
subsidiaries - - - - - - 4440 - - - 4440 6,103 30,543
Shareof exchange gainon~ JE(EIRE—FIBA AT
translation of foreign operation  HISEANEASENE K iz
of an associate - - - - - - 4,475 - - - 4,475 - 4475
Share of revaluation surplus of ~ FE{G— Bt S A AliB/E
an associate’s hotel property — ¥1ERE] H%ﬁ% - - - - - 1,127 - - - - 1,121 - 1,121
Reclassification of exchange s #—THHB AR
reserve upon deregistration B X EERIEHH \*E
of a subsidiary - - - - = - (88%) = = - (8898) - (8,89)
Total comprehensive income 2 E 4%
for the year - - - - - 1121 20,017 - (14739 = 6405 16,181 22,586
Release of statutory reserve s~ FEMB AT
upon deregistration of &R =T E
a subsidiary - - - - - = - (3856) 3,856 - - - -
Transfer 3 - - - - - - - 2,030 (2,030 - - - -
Share of an associate’s Elh-RBERAEE
statutory reserve e - - - - - - - 428 (428) - - - -
Balance as at R=B-=%
31 December 2013 TZRZt-RMEH 13246 528,150 2,215 480 89936 24417 151905 32,745 130,231 - 9713325 97612 1,070,937
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ¥R R M R

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman lIslands as an exempted
company with limited liability. The Company’s shares are listed on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock
Exchange”).

The address of the Company’s registered office and principal place of
business are Clifton House, 75 Fort Street, P.O. Box 1350 GT, George
Town, Grand Cayman, Cayman lIslands and Room 2301, 23/F, Fortis
Tower, 77-79 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong respectively.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and the
principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 16(a) to the
financial statements.

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2013 were
approved for issue by the board of directors on 24 March 2014.

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

(a) Adoption of new and revised HKFRSs - first effective on 1 January
2013

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first time the
following new and revised HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”), which
are relevant to and effective for the Group’s financial statements
for the annual year beginning on 1 January 2013:

HKFRSs (Amendments)  Annual Improvements
2010-2012 Cycle

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z—=F+-"A=+—HIFE

—REHR

ARARFASESEAMA LIRS —MERLZERL
A RABBRODNEBHAERZAER AR (B
Frl)EMRE °

AN E M P EE R E B ¥ 2 5 5 AClifton
House, 75 Fort Street, P.O. Box 1350 GT, George
Town, Grand Cayman, Cayman lslands X & (&
THTE77-795% BiMAE231E2301 E °

AARMEIEEBRIREER  WBARMNEERHE
BEN P B M FEL6() ©

EEGER T MOF=A-_THAHAETEEE
“E=FF+ A=t HIEFENPBHRS

RMERMBRELELNTERMBER

HER )

()  RAHHT RGN 2 EBHIEREEA -G =
T-=F—F-REEREN

RAREE  RNEEEHREMN T EEGELQ
B EESTEAE ) raMEARENTE
BREBERNR T —=F—A—BRBNEE
EREFTE] RARIERT BB MBI E A -

Amendments to
HKAS 1 (Revised)

Amendments to
HKFRS 7
HKFRS 10
HKFRS 12
HKFRS 13
HKAS 19 (2011)

HKAS 27 (2011)

HKAS 28 (2011)

Presentation of Items of
Other Comprehensive Income

Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities

Consolidated Financial Statements

Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

Fair Value Measurement

Employee Benefits

Separate Financial Statements

Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures

Except as explained below, the adoption of these new and
revised HKFRSs has no material impact on the Group’s financial

statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z-—=F+-_A=+—HULHFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Cont'd)

(a)

Adoption of new and revised HKFRSs - first effective on 1 January
2013 (Cont'd)

HKFRSs (Amendments) — Annual Improvements 2010-2012
Cycle

The Basis of Conclusions for HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement
was amended to clarify that short-term receivables and payables
with no stated interest rate can be measured at their invoice
amounts without discounting, if the effect of discounting is
immaterial. This is consistent with the Group’s existing accounting
policy.

Amendments to HKAS1 (Revised) — Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income

The amendments to HKAS 1 (Revised) require the Group to
separate items presented in other comprehensive income into
those that may be reclassified to profit and loss in the future and
those that may not. Tax on items of other comprehensive income
is allocated and disclosed on the same basis.

The Group has adopted the amendments retrospectively for
the financial year ended 31 December 2013. Items of other
comprehensive income that may and may not be reclassified
to profit and loss in the future have been presented separately
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. The
comparative information has been restated to comply with the
amendments. As the amendments affect presentation only, there
are no effects on the Group’s financial position or performance.

Amendments to HKFRS 7 — Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities

HKFRS 7 is amended to introduce disclosures for all recognised
financial instruments that are set off under HKAS 32 and those
that are subject to an enforceable master netting agreement or
similar arrangement, irrespective of whether they are set off under
HKAS 32.

The adoption of the amendments has no impact on these financial
statements as the Group has not offset financial instruments,
nor has it entered into a master netting agreement or a similar
arrangement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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2.

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Cont'd)

Adoption of new and revised HKFRSs - first effective on 1 January
2013 (Cont'd)

HKFRS 10 — Consolidated Financial Statements

HKFRS 10 introduces a single control model for consolidation of
all investee entities. An investor has control when it has power
over the investee (whether or not that power is used in practice),
exposure or rights to variable returns from the investee and the
ability to use the power over the investee to affect those returns.
HKFRS 10 contains extensive guidance on the assessment of
control. For example, the standard introduces the concept of
“de facto” control where an investor can control an investee
while holding less than 50% of the investee’s voting rights in
circumstances where its voting interest is of sufficiently dominant
size relative to the size and dispersion of those of other individual
shareholders to give it power over the investee. Potential voting
rights are considered in the analysis of control only when these
are substantive, i.e. the holder has the practical ability to exercise
them.

The standard explicitly requires an assessment of whether an
investor with decision making rights is acting as principal or
agent and also whether other parties with decision making rights
are acting as agents of the investor. An agent is engaged to act
on behalf of and for the benefit of another party and therefore
does not control the investee when it exercises its decision
making authority. The accounting requirements in HKAS 27
(2008) on other consolidation related matters are carried forward
unchanged. The Group has changed its accounting policy in
determining whether it has control of an investee and therefore is
required to consolidate that interest (see note 4(b)).

The adoption of HKFRS 10 does not have any material impact on
the Group’s financial position or performance.

HKFRS 12 — Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

HKFRS 12 integrates and makes consistent the disclosure
requirements about interests in subsidiaries, associates and joint
arrangements. It also introduces new disclosure requirements,
including those related to unconsolidated structured entities. The
general objective of the standard is to enable users of financial
statements to evaluate the nature and risks of a reporting entity’s
interests in other entities and the effects of those interests on the
reporting entity’s financial statements.

HKFRS 12 disclosures are provided in notes 16 and 17. As the
new standard affects only disclosure, there is no effect on the
Group's financial position and performance.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z-—=F+-_A=+—HULHFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Cont'd)

(a)

Adoption of new and revised HKFRSs - first effective on 1 January
2013 (Cont'd)

HKFRS 13 — Fair Value Measurement

HKFRS 13 provides a single source of guidance on how to
measure fair value when it is required or permitted by other
standards. The standard applies to both financial and non-
financial items measured at fair value and introduces a fair value
measurement hierarchy. The definitions of the three levels in this
measurement hierarchy are generally consistent with HKFRS

7 “Financial Instruments: Disclosures”. HKFRS 13 defines fair
value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date (i.e. an exit price). The
standard removes the requirement to use bid and ask prices for
financial assets and liabilities quoted in an active market. Rather
the price within the bid-ask spread that is most representative of
fair value in the circumstances should be used. It also contains
extensive disclosure requirements to allow users of the financial
statements to assess the methods and inputs used in measuring
fair values and the effects of fair value measurements on the
financial statements. HKFRS 13 is applied prospectively.

HKFRS 13 did not materially affect any fair value measurements
of the Group’s assets and liabilities and therefore has no effect
on the Group’s financial position and performance. The standard
requires additional disclosures about fair value measurements and
these are included in note 15. Comparative disclosures have not
been presented in accordance with the transitional provisions of
the standard.

HKAS 19 (2011) — Employee Benefits

HKAS 19 (2011) distinguishes between short-term and long-term
employee benefits based on the expected date of settlement.
The previous standard used the term “due to be settled”. HKAS
19 (2011) provides additional guidance on the definition of
termination benefits. Benefits that are conditional on future service
being provided including those that increase if additional service
is provided are not termination benefits. The revised standard
requires that a liability for termination benefits is recognised on
the earlier of the date when the entity can no longer withdraw
the offer of those benefits and the date the entity recognises any
related restructuring costs.

The Group has amended its accounting policies for short-term
employee benefits and termination benefits, however the adoption
of the revised standard has no effect on the Group’s financial
position or performance.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-Z-—=F+-A=-+—ALHFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING 2. EAEBUBEREXBN(HFBHBR
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Cont'd) HER D) &)
(h)  New or revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet (h) EEMEREKRERNITTREETEBHBR
effective HZEA|
The Group has not applied the following new or revised HKFRSs AR MR B IR FE AN AT B BAE MR
that have been issued, but are not yet effective and have not been ERE ] SIS ET BB 1S5 2R -
early adopted by the Group.
Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and BAEGFTERFEI2H HESREER
Financial Liabilities! Em Bl TRBE!
Amendments to HKAS 36 Recoverable Amount Disclosures? GRTERIE36E  ARE SRR
E!’Mﬁ H
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments BBMIEHREER SRT A
E95%
Amendments to Hedge Accounting BB IR E LR HAertRE
HKFRS 9, HKFRS 7 %9?—)% BB
and HKAS 39 WEERNETHR R
BB GFER|
F39%HEE]
Amendments to Investment entities! BB HREZER RE B!
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 F10%; - BB
and HKAS 27 (2011) HEAERFE 1258 K
BAEETER
F27HEERT
(Z2——%F)
Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans: BEAEFTER RERMETE -
(2011) Employee Contributions? F195MIERT EEHR
—T—%F)
Amendments to HKAS 39 Novation of Derivatives and ERSTEREI TEEREF K
Continuation of Hedge HEET R R IEA!
Accounting?
HK (IFRIC) 21 Levies! (BRI BERE #E!
EAREZES)
—REE219
HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements BREMISHREER —E-TF
2010-2012 Cycle® (8ETA) T FiAH
B F E ks
HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements BN ISR E 2R —T——F=%
2011-2013 Cycle? CCHIEN) —T—=FiAH
K S U2
1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014 L RZZ—WOF—A— AU ERROFER
FE
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014 2 RZZ—WF LA — AN EFBNEER
AR
3 Effective for annual periods beginning, or transactions occurring, on 3 REZZT—WF LA — AN RFABNFER
or after 1 July 2014 FEBKBEENRS
Amendments to HKAS 32 — Offsetting Financial Assets and B ERFE32H ST — M2 & E
Financial Liabilities A< LHE &
The amendments clarify the offsetting requirements by adding BB RBY BB S ERFEI29R MR E
appliance guidance to HKAS 32 which clarifies when an entity FR¥ESIMERE EEEHRE - ZIESIHEE
“currently has a legally enforceable right to set off” and when [ B Al A A E LR fIs TR A8 | 2 i
a gross settlement mechanism is considered equivalent to net AR BB E R RATERNFREEE L
settlement. RRETTHRS o
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z-—=F+-_A=+—HULHFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING 2. RAEEBHMBEHREEAN(FHEMKHR

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs™) (Cont'd) EHER ] #)
(b) New or revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet (b) CEMEREKRERNITREETNEBITK
effective (Cont'd) %R ()

Amendments to HKAS 36 — Recoverable Amount Disclosures

The amendments limit the requirements to disclose the
recoverable amount of an asset or cash generating unit (CGU) to
those periods in which an impairment loss has been recognised
or reversed, and expand the disclosures where the recoverable
amount of impaired assets or CGUs has been determined based
on fair value less costs of disposal. The amendments are effective
for annual periods commencing on or after 1 January 2014.

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments

Under HKFRS 9, financial assets are classified into financial
assets measured at fair value or at amortised cost depending on
the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and
the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets.
Fair value gains or losses will be recognised in profit or loss except
for those non-trade equity investments, which the entity will have
a choice to recognise the gains and losses in other comprehensive
income. HKFRS 9 carries forward the recognition, classification
and measurement requirements for financial liabilities from HKAS
39, except for financial liabilities that are designated at fair value
through profit or loss, where the amount of change in fair value
attributable to change in credit risk of that liability is recognised in
other comprehensive income unless that would create or enlarge
an accounting mismatch. In addition, HKFRS 9 retains the
requirements in HKAS 39 for derecognition of financial assets and
financial liabilities.

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKFRS 7 and HKAS 39 — Hedge
Accounting

The amendments overhaul hedge accounting to allow entities
to better reflect their risk management activities in financial
statements. Changes included in HKFRS 9 to address the own
credit risk issue on financial liabilities designated at fair value
through profit or loss can be applied in isolation without the need
to change any other accounting for financial instruments. The
amendments also remove the 1 January 2015 effective date for
HKFRS 9.

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27 (2012) —
Investment Entities

The amendments apply to a particular class of businesses
that qualify as investment entities. An investment entity’s
business purpose is to invest funds solely for returns from
capital appreciation, investment income or both. It evaluates the
performance of its investments on a fair value basis. Investment
entities could include private equity organisations, venture capital
organisations, pension funds and investment funds.
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2.

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Cont'd)

New or revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective (Cont'd)

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27 (2012) —
Investment Entities (Cont'd)

The amendments provide an exception to the consolidation
requirements in HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements
and require investment entities to measure particular subsidiaries
at fair value through profit or loss rather than to consolidate them.
The amendments also set out the disclosure requirements for
investment entities. The amendments are applied retrospectively
subject to certain transitional provisions.

Amendments to HKAS 19 (2011) — Defined Benefit Plans:
Employee Contributions

The amendments permit contributions that are independent of the
number of years of service to be recognised as a reduction in the
service cost in the period in which the service is rendered instead
of allocating the contributions to periods of service.

Amendments to HKAS 39 — Novation of Derivatives and
Continuation of Hedge Accounting

The amendments provide relief from discontinuing hedge
accounting when novation of a hedging instrument to a central
counterparty meets specified criteria.

HK (IFRIC) 21 — Levies

HK (IFRIC) 21 clarifies that an entity recognizes a liability to pay
a levy imposed by government when the activity that triggers
payment, as identified by the relevant legislation, occurs.

Annual Improvements 2010-2012 Cycle and 2011-2013 Cycle

The amendments issued under the annual improvements process
make small, non-urgent charges to a number of standards where
they are currently unclear. Among them HKAS 16 Property,
Plant and Equipment has been amended to clarify how the gross
carrying amount and accumulated depreciation are treated
where an entity uses the revaluation model. The carrying amount
of the asset is restated to revalued amount. The accumulated
depreciation may be eliminated against the gross carrying amount
of the asset. Alternatively, the gross carrying amount may be
adjusted in a manner consistent with the revaluation of the
carrying amount of the asset and the accumulated depreciation
is adjusted to equal the difference between the gross carrying
amount and the carrying amount after taking into account
accumulated impairment losses.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the potential
impact of these new or revised HKFRSs and the directors so far
concluded that the application of these new or revised HKFRSs will
have no material impact on the Group’s financial statements.

(b)

For the year ended 31 December 2013
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z-—=F+-_A=+—HULHFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a)

(b)

(c)

(a)

Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and Interpretations (hereinafter collectively referred
to as the “HKFRSs”) issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. In addition,
the financial statements include applicable disclosures required by
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on Stock Exchange.

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical
cost basis except for the investment properties and hotel
properties, which are measured at fair values as explained in the
accounting policies set out below.

Functional and presentation currency
The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars

(“HK$"), which is the same as the functional currency of the
Company.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”).
Inter-company transactions and balances between group
companies together with unrealised profits are eliminated in full in
preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of
impairment on the asset transferred, in which case the loss is
recognised in profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income from the effective dates of acquisition or up to the effective
dates of disposal, as appropriate. Where necessary, adjustments
are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with those used by other members of
the Group.

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do not result
in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions. The
carrying amounts of the Group’s interest and the non-controlling
interest are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative
interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount
by which the non-controlling interest is adjusted and the fair value
of the consideration paid or received is recognised directly in
equity and attributed to owners of the Company.
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4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Basis of consolidation (Cont'd)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or loss on
disposal is calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate
of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of
any retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount of the
assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any
non-controlling interest. Amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to the subsidiary are accounted
for in the same manner as would be required if the relevant assets
or liabilities were disposed of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-controlling
interests that represent present ownership interests in the
subsidiary is the amount of those interests at initial recognition
plus such non-controlling interest’s share of subsequent changes
in equity. Total comprehensive income is attributed to non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Group is able to
exercise control. The Group controls an investee if all three of the
following elements are present: power over the investee, exposure,
or rights, to variable returns from the investee, and the ability to
use its power to affect those variable returns. Control is reassessed
whenever facts and circumstances indicate that there may be a
change in any of these elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, subsidiaries
are carried at cost less any impairment loss unless the subsidiary
is held for sale or included in a disposal group. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividends received and receivable at the end of the reporting
period. All dividends whether received out of the investee’s pre or
post-acquisition profits are recognised in the Company’s profit or
loss.

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor a joint arrangement.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial
and operating policy decisions of the investee but not control or
joint control over those policies.

Associates are accounted for using the equity method whereby
they are initially recognised at cost and thereafter, their carrying
amount are adjusted for the Group’s share of the post-acquisition
change in the associates’ net assets except that losses in excess
of the Group’s interest in the associate are not recognised unless
there is an obligation to make good those losses.

4. FTESTTBEER

(a)

(b)

(c)

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z—=F+-"A=+—HIFE

k(%)

REEE(E)

fisl A SR B SR SR T T X Rl ROIZ R4 - RIH B
B TRENERRER A BEREMR
REF A BENLERMZNIBARNE
E(RERE) A ENRRERZHEREREN B
EREEMERNERFE - FAREMCEE
Yo g A RERR SLRZ B 1 1R B RO (2] 2 BRI
IAREEE B EREEERBENTAALR -

WHETEARR - JFR s AR E B R % S
ROT RN LR - SIS R RS H
BRERZBDEE - AR HKRAERE TIE
ERERSSECHERERELBAGE  2
E Y AR RR TR 55 8 T ORI A AR

o) N

MERAR AR TEEENERE - LT

= AR Z2 W R R R R AEEES — B
RET - AR ETHEN - REFIREL A

S E e R R REN RN BRI EZEN

HBEHANEES - ERFERIBRBNMEMNZSE
ZHIFERATREH IR BB - RS R ERRT
1 e

MARBHABARRIMEZR - B R B TR
ANMEHFMERDRERIEAR - BRIEZMB AR
Tjﬁf’ﬁﬁjﬁiﬁiﬂﬂ)\%ﬂjﬁiﬁ%H‘H’E%Jéﬁ o K
D EVRIR R $R 5 B AR A B Mo R IR W AR B S B 28
RAIMZEREDIRR - BHRIRE AUE AT

% BRIREREOFT IR BT A A )RS IR OB
E
BEAT

BERARAREHEREEAZENINE
B REEMEAR - MIFARERHE - iﬁ?ﬁa
ﬁ%bﬁféj] S ER BRI RS ERE
B3 IE % BRI A Ik & P -

B R E SRR EARR - Rk 2 QR
PRASH SRR - ﬁtfﬁﬁﬂ%@@ﬁ‘ﬂﬁ%%@?ﬁ’]ﬁ
EFENRBIARRAEE G RBRE
V&ttzﬁﬁlﬁéﬁﬁ%%@TE‘J%&E‘J%ET’;TJ&
R BRIFEEEREAETER -

56

New Heritage Holdings Ltd. Annual Report 2013



Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2013

HE-_Z—

=F+-A=+—HILEE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(c)

(d)

Associates (Cont'd)

Profits and losses arising on transactions between the Group
and its associates are recognised only to the extent of unrelated
investors’ interests in the associate. The investor's share in the
associate’s profits and losses resulting from these transactions
is eliminated against the carrying value of the associate. Where
unrealised losses provide evidence of impairment of the asset
transferred they are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Any premium paid for an associate above the fair value of the
Group’s share of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities acquired is capitalised and included in the carrying
amount of the associate. Where there is objective evidence that
the investment in an associate has been impaired, the carrying
amount of the investment is tested for impairment in the same
way as other non-financial assets.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, investments in
associates are carried at cost less impairment losses, if any. The
results of associates are accounted for by the Company on the
basis of dividends received and receivable during the year.

Foreign currency

Transactions entered into by the group entities in currencies other
than the currency of the primary economic environment in which
they operate (the “functional currency”) are recorded at the rates
ruling when the transactions occur. Foreign currency monetary
assets and liabilities are translated at the rates ruling at the end
of reporting period. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that
are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the translation of monetary items, are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise. Exchange differences
arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items carried at
fair value are included in profit or loss for the period except for
differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items
in respect of which gains and losses are recognised in other
comprehensive income, in which case, the exchange differences
are also recognised in other comprehensive income.
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4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(d)

(e)

Foreign currency (Cont’d)

On consolidation, income and expense items of foreign operations
are translated into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e.
Hong Kong dollars) at the average exchange rates for the year,
unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period,
in which case, the rates approximating to those ruling when
the transactions took place are used. All assets and liabilities
of foreign operations are translated at the rate ruling at the end
of reporting period. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity as foreign exchange reserve (attributed to minority interests
as appropriate). Exchange differences recognised in profit or loss
of group entities’ separate financial statements on the translation
of long-term monetary items forming part of the Group’s net
investment in the foreign operation concerned are reclassified
to other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity as
exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative exchange
differences recognised in the foreign exchange reserve relating to
that operation up to the date of disposal are reclassified to profit or
loss as part of the profit or loss on disposal.

Property, plant and equipment
(i) Depreciation
Depreciation is provided to write off the cost or valuation of

property, plant and equipment over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight-line method, at the following rates

per annum:
Leasehold land and buildings 2% — 5%
Leasehold improvements 10% — 20%
Motor vehicles 20%
Operating and office equipment 5% — 20%
Furniture and fixtures 20%

Hotel properties Period of the lease terms
The asset’s depreciation methods, residual values and
useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted, if appropriate, at
the end of the reporting period.

For the year ended 31 December 2013
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

(e)

(f)

Property, plant and equipment (Cont'd)
(i) Measurement bases

Property, plant and equipment, other than hotel properties,
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses. The cost of an asset comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to the working condition and location
for its intended use. Subsequent costs are included in
the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
All other costs, such as repairs and maintenance, are
charged to the profit or loss during the financial period in
which they are incurred.

Hotel properties held by an associate of the Group are
stated at valuation determined by external professional
valuers less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses.

Changes in the value of hotel properties are dealt with as
movements in the hotel property, plant and equipment
revaluation reserve. If the balance of this reserve is
insufficient to cover a deficit, the excess of the deficit is
charged to the profit or loss.

The gain or loss arising on retirement or disposal is
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in
profit or loss. Any revaluation surplus remaining in equity
is transferred to retained profits on the disposal of hotel
properties and certain buildings that have been transferred
as investment properties.

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are owned
or held under a leasehold interest to earn rental income and/or
for capital appreciation. These include land held for a currently
undetermined future use and property that is being constructed or
developed for future use as investment property.

When the Group holds a property interest under an operating
lease to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, the
interest is classified and accounted for as an investment property
on a property-by-property basis. Any such property interest which
has been classified as an investment property is accounted for as
if it was held under a finance lease.

B RS ER AR M

4. FESTHBER(E)

W BERRE(E)

(e)

U]

(ii)

WE - BB R RE(RBEEDEIN) RK
RMEBBEANELREBER - BE
RABRREEREEMZEEENAE
BN R E R E R B EEHLE A
EEZAREKA - HRHKAEER
B2 8 B A BRI E R st AT BE A
AEE - MzEB KA FEAENE
ATFABERREE  HERR A
B EEMGER) ° A HE M A (L0
HERRB)REENHMBHEALER
AR

ANEE R — R 2 R B P A BB R Y
% TR ER REHTE MR EERS
fR o ERINEHEHERMETE -

BIEMEEENED  HIERBEREY
X BERRBEGFHEOESEE -
B xR AR R AR EAL - PR
H BB AL I R E AR A ST 8E o

BEBRERHEMELNBRREEMN
SRR EERMERMNZEETE - I
REREARER - RHEBEENERE
BIEREMENETETR AR
HOTNELRAREE RS RE AT
A o

REME

REYZEERERESBAR,SEREET
DHERSHASIFANLTHE SETF 8
FEFTH AR 1M AR TE AR R A& R T30 3R 1E
BERBRABRKIELENERENODE

HARERBQEHERE B AR
BESWAR,RAEAREE - AZERRE
MENEEUREMEDBRAR - DERKR
BYENERZENFESIREORERESE
ERANITENE -

HEERERAR

59

=GR



Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ¥R R M R

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(f)

(g)

Investment properties (Cont'd)

On initial recognition, investment property is measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to
initial recognition, investment property is stated at fair value,
unless it is still in the course of construction or development at
the end of the reporting period and its fair value cannot be reliably
determined at that time. Fair value is determined by external
professional valuers, with sufficient experience with respect to
both the location and the nature of the investment property. The
carrying amounts recognised at the end of the reporting period
reflect the prevailing market conditions at the end of the reporting
period.

Gains or losses arising from either changes in the fair value or the
sale of an investment property are included in profit or loss in the
period in which they arise.

Goodwill

Goodwill is initially recognised at cost being the excess of the
aggregate of consideration transferred and the amount recognised
for non-controlling interests over the fair value of identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired.

Where the fair value of identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities exceed the fair value of consideration paid, the excess
is recognised in profit or loss on the acquisition date, after re-
assessment.

Goodwill is measured at cost less impairment losses. For the
purpose of impairment testing, goodwill arising from an acquisition
is allocated to each of the relevant cash-generating units that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the acquisition. A cash-
generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment annually, and whenever there is an indication that the
unit may be impaired.

For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial year, the cash-
generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment before the end of that financial year. When the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the
carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit
first, and then to the other assets of the unit pro-rata on the basis
of the carrying amount to each asset in the unit. Any impairment
loss for goodwill is recognised in profit or loss and is not reversed
in subsequent periods.

For the year ended 31 December 2013
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

(h)

(i)

(0)

Properties held under development

Properties held under development for future sale are included in
current assets and comprise land held under operating lease (note
4(0)) and aggregate cost of development, materials and supplies,
wages, borrowing costs capitalised for qualifying assets and other
expenses (“Development costs”). Development costs are stated
at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Other expenses
included (i) those costs that are incurred in bringing the properties
held under development to their present location and condition
and (ii) a systematic allocation of fixed overheads that are incurred
on development of properties. Fixed overheads are indirect costs
which remain relatively constant regardless of the size or volume
of the development.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less estimated costs of completion and
estimated selling expenses.

Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. In the case of completed properties developed
by the Group, cost is determined by apportionment of the total
development costs for that development project, attributable to
the unsold properties. Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less estimated selling
expenses.

The cost of properties held for sale comprises all costs of
purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing
the properties to their present location and condition.

Financial assets

The Group’s accounting policies for the financial assets other than
investments in subsidiaries and associates are set out below.

The Group classified its financial assets as loans and receivables.
Management determines the classification of the financial assets
at initial recognition depending on the purpose for which the
financial assets were acquired and where allowed and appropriate,
re-evaluates this designation at the end of the reporting period.

All financial assets are recognised when, and only when, the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. When financial assets are recognised initially, they are
measured at fair value, plus directly attributable transaction costs.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

()]

Financial assets (Cont'd)

Derecognition of financial assets occurs when the rights to receive
cash flows from the investments expire or are transferred and
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred.

At the end of the reporting period, financial assets are reviewed
to assess whether there is objective evidence of impairment. If
any such evidence exists, impairment loss is determined and
recognised based on the classification of the financial asset.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Loans and receivables are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment
losses. Amortised cost is calculated taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees that are an
integral part of the effective interest rate and transaction cost.

Impairment of financial assets

At the end of the reporting period, financial assets are reviewed to
determine whether there is any objective evidence of impairment.

Objective evidence of impairment of individual financial asset
includes observable data that comes to the attention of the Group
about one or more of the following loss events:

- Significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- A breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments;

- It becoming probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation;

- Significant changes in the technological, market, economic
or legal environment that have an adverse effect on the
debtor; and

- A significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an
investment in an equity instrument below its cost.

Loss events in respect of a group of financial assets include
observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in
the estimated future cash flows from the group of financial assets.
Such observable data includes but not limited to adverse changes
in the payment status of debtors in the group and, national or local
economic conditions that correlate with defaults on the assets in
the group.

For the year ended 31 December 2013
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

(0)]

(k)

()

(m)

Financial assets (Cont'd)
Impairment of financial assets (Cont'd)

If any such evidence exists, the impairment loss is measured and
recognised as follows:

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans
and receivables carried at amortised cost has been incurred,
the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not
been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition). The amount of the loss is recognised in profit or loss
of the period in which the impairment occurs.

If, in subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is reversed to the extent that it does not result in the carrying
amount of the financial asset exceeding what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been recognised at the date the
impairment is reversed. The amount of the reversal is recognised in
profit or loss of the period in which the reversal occurs.

Inventories

Inventories comprise consumable stores for own consumption
which are initially recognised at cost, and subsequently at the
lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined using
the weighted average method.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank, cash in hand
and demand deposits with banks, which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of
generally within 3 months or less when acquired.

Financial liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities include borrowings, accounts and
other payables, accruals, deposits received and convertible notes.

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. All interest
related charges are recognised in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy for borrowing costs (see note 4(u)).

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligations under the
liability is discharged, cancelled or expires.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of
an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the
respective carrying amount is recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(m)

Financial liahilities (Cont’d)
Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised
cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption value is recognised in profit or loss over
the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at
least twelve months after the end of the reporting period.

Convertible notes

Convertible notes that can be converted to equity share capital at
the option of the holder, where the number of shares that would
be issued on conversion and the value of the consideration that
would be received at that time do not vary, are accounted for as
compound financial instruments which contain both a liability
component and an equity component.

Convertible notes issued by the Company that contain both
financial liability and equity components are classified separately
into respective liability and equity components on initial
recognition. On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability
component is determined using the prevailing market interest
rate for similar non-convertible debts. The fair value of the equity
component is determined using the binomial option pricing model.

The liability component is subsequently carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. The equity component will
remain in equity until conversion or redemption of the notes.

When the notes are converted, the convertible notes equity
reserves and the carrying value of the liability component at
the time of conversion, is transferred to share capital and share
premium as consideration for the shares issued. If the notes are
redeemed, the convertible notes equity reserves are released
directly to retained profits.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible notes
are allocated to the liability and equity components in proportion
to their respective fair values. Transaction costs relating to the
equity component are charged directly to equity. Transaction costs
relating to the liability component are included in the carrying
amount of the liability portion and amortised over the period of the
convertible notes using the effective interest method.

Accounts and other payables, accruals and deposits received
Accounts and other payables, accruals and deposits received are

recognised initially at their fair values and subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

4,
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

(n)

(0)

Financial guarantee issued

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the
issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a
loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment
when due in accordance with the original or modified terms of
a debt instrument. A financial guarantee contract issued by the
Group and not designated as at fair value through profit or loss
is recognised initially at its fair value less transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the issue of the financial guarantee
contract. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group measures
the financial guarantee contact at the higher of: (i) the amount
determined in accordance with HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets; and (ii) the amount initially
recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative amortisation
recognised in accordance with HKAS 18 Revenue.

Leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines that
the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset or assets
for an agreed period of time in return for a payment or a series of
payments. Such a determination is made based on an evaluation
of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless of whether
the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership are classified as being held under finance
leases. Leases which do not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership to the Group are classified
as operating leases, with the following exceptions:

Leasehold interest in land is up-front payments to acquire
the land use rights. The payments are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses.
Amortisation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the up-front payments over the lease terms.

Leasehold interest in land included in properties held
under development and properties held for sale, of which
the amortisation of prepaid land lease is capitalised as part
of the building costs during the development period but
charged to the profit or loss for completed properties.

Properties leased out under operating leases are included
in investment properties in the consolidated statement of
financial position. The recognition of rental income is set
out in note 4(r).

B RS ER AR M

4. FESTHBER(E)

(n)

(o)

B R R

MBRRANTIREE L ARFEAXNEE
SR UHERE ABREEREARERE
B T AR IS T RN 2 BB M =R
XHBR - AAKEBBOAIFEER/Z AR
EEEBEDIRNMBEREONFEAR
BERELUBERANERELNIZHA
TUARER - VIFHERIR - ARBEIZIA T EIAR
BEAEMBER: ORHNEESEBRER
BT ERNEI7RAE  AARBERAARE
EEE)  RPFERSER(NEE)RIE
R GERF 18R MATERH) R

HE

IAREERR - —HAZHE TR — BB EHH
AEARE R EEEMNER - WIART KBS
NFIERZH » ZAR(BER/RZIIESR
Z)RRBE—RAHEE - ARELKFNEZER
HERARK @ BE LRE - I TEEE
ZRLZHEBBEENEELA

N
i

(1) LB EEHE SR
HRAKBUHERENEE - RH
BT R M BAI D E kMO g
EREE - FHEERESEBERARE
HERKE  WREETSEMARNE
RebnRERNEREL EAREE - A
BRRelRE - BETIEREN

TSR EREEE T ERENESE
SR - RERBTIRRAER R
BN EFREBENR - EEXR
HIRM A B AOES BB T A -

BERTOERGENE R HHERE
7 ERNES L EEEEHe T
HRAFOMOBTEA - BEEKY
FRISHERRRANR -

FETRER N B MEN RS MISR
KRN AKLEME - HEWANFER
R FEA() ©

FEERERAT —T-S£5H 65



Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ¥R R M R

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(0)

(p)

Leases (Cont'd)
(i) Operating lease charges as the lessee

Where the Group has the use of assets held under operating
leases, payments made under the leases are charged to the
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease terms
except where an alternative basis is more representative of
the time pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased
assets. Lease incentives received are recognised in profit or
loss as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.

(ifi)  Assets leased out under operating leases as the lessor

Assets leased out under operating leases are measured
and presented according to the nature of the assets. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised as an expense over the lease
term on the same basis as the rental income.

Rental income receivable from operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over
the periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the time pattern
of benefits to be derived from the use of the leased asset.
Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
receivable. Contingent rentals are recognised as income in
the accounting period in which they are earned.

Provisions, contingent liahilities and contingent assets

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, and it
is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount
of the obligation can be made. Where the time value of money
is material, provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

All provisions are reviewed at the end of the reporting period and
adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future uncertain
events not wholly within the control of the Group are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

(p)

(q)

(r)

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets (Cont'd)

Contingent liabilities are recognised in the course of the allocation
of purchase price to the assets and liabilities acquired in a
business combination. They are initially measured at fair value at
the date of acquisition and subsequently measured at the higher
of the amount that would be recognised in a comparable provision
as described above and the amount initially recognised less any
accumulated amortisation, if appropriate.

Probable inflows of economic benefits to the Group that not yet
meet the recognition criteria of an asset are considered contingent
assets.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share capital is
determined using the nominal value of shares that have been
issued.

Any transaction costs associated with the issue of shares are
deducted from share premium (net of any related income tax
benefits) to the extent that they are incremental costs directly
attributable to the equity transaction.

Revenue recognition

Revenue arising from sale of properties held for sale is recognised
when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of these
properties held for sale have been transferred to the purchasers
and the Group retains neither continuing involvement to the
degree usually associated with ownership nor effective control
over properties held for sale. The transfer of risks and rewards of
ownership is evidenced by the passing of possession of properties
to the purchaser when the property hand-over confirmation
is executed by the Group and the purchaser. Deposits and
instalments received from purchasers prior to this stage and pre-
sale are included in current liabilities and are not recognised as
revenue.

Rental income receivable under operating leases is recognised
in equal instalments over the accounting periods covered by
the lease terms. Lease incentives granted are recognised as an
integral part of the aggregate net lease payments receivable.
Contingent rentals are recognised as income in the period in
which they are earned.

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis using the
effective interest method.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment
is established.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(s)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill, property, plant and equipment, investments in
subsidiaries and interests in associates are subject to impairment
testing.

Goodwill is tested for impairment at least annually, irrespective of
whether there is any indication that they are impaired. All other
assets are tested for impairment whenever there are indications
that the asset’s carrying amount may not be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately for
the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of fair
value, reflecting market conditions less costs to sell, and value in
use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessment of time value of money and
the risk specific to the asset.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where an asset does
not generate cash inflows largely independent from those from
other assets, the recoverable amount is determined for the
smallest group of assets that generate cash inflow independently
(i.e. a cash-generating unit). As a result, some assets are
tested individually for impairment and some are tested at cash-
generating unit level. Goodwill in particular is allocated to those
cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from synergies
of the related business combination and represent the lowest level
within the Group at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purpose.

Impairment losses recognised for cash-generating units, to which
goodwill has been allocated, are credited initially to the carrying
amount of goodwill. Any remaining impairment loss is charged pro
rata to the other assets in the cash-generating unit, except that the
carrying value of an asset will not be reduced below its individual
fair value less cost to sell, or value in use, if determinable.

An impairment loss on goodwill is not reversed in subsequent
periods. In respect of other assets, an impairment loss is reversed
if there has been a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the asset’s recoverable amount and only to the extent
that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in respect of
goodwill are not reversed in a subsequent period. This is the case
even if no loss, or a smaller loss, would have been recognised had
the impairment been assessed only at the end of the reporting
period to which the interim period relates.

For the year ended 31 December 2013
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

(t) Employee henefits

(i)

(i)

Retirement benefits

Retirement benefits to employees are provided through
defined contribution plans.

The Group operates a defined contribution retirement
benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for all of its employees
who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate
in People’s Republic of China (“PRC") are required to
participate in a central pension scheme operated by the
local municipal government. The subsidiaries are required
to contribute a fixed percentage of its payroll costs to the
central pension scheme.

Contributions are recognised as an expense in profit or loss
as employees render services during the year. The Group’s
obligation under these schemes is limited to the fixed
percentage contributions payable.

Short-term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are employee benefits (other
than termination benefits) that are expected to be settled
wholly before twelve months after the end of the annual
reporting period in which the employees render the related
service. Short term employee benefits are recognised in the
year when the employees render the related service.

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made for the
estimated liability for annual leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the end of the reporting
period.

Non-accumulating compensated absences such as sick
leave and maternity leave are not recognised until the time
of leave.

B RS ER AR M

4. FESTHBER(E)

(i) EEEA

(i)

(ii)

RIKIEF

AR BEREREHE AR ERMR
RtEH -

AREE BRI R ES A SEDIAR
E - RATARARZEEREHTURKE
MetE([RES T8 ) eE BRI ATE
58 - HRIZEEEFORERD
LEETE

REBMPFEARLMB ([ )L
EBOMBRRNESR2EHM T
BUF R SZE P JUR R 5T 8] - 2 FHT S
REEREFERARNFEEBRER D
Al RIR R FT B -

RRMEB R F AR - R NE
@mRPERAFAX - AEENZEE
MEERNASNHEE RS LA H

2 HE S 15 7
RHEE RN REREREERM T
FRRFSHFE 2 M RE + & A LA
Al 1% 2 B4 T &Y 1B B A8 A (BB A2 Rl B
SN - FBHIE SRR 8 TIER B R
i‘%lﬂq,ﬁﬂﬁaﬁﬁgﬁb °

BEEENFHRIENNEA]ZHRHE
R o BE2WAHERESRERE WA
FENFRIETABECIERE -

FEREH R (R R RER) KRR fE

=7
o ©

HEERERAR

69

=GR



Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ¥R R M R

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

®

(u)

Employee benefits (Cont'd)
(i) Employee share-based payment compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan.

All employee services received in exchange for the grant of
any share-based compensation are measured at fair values.
These are indirectly determined by reference to the share
options awarded. Their value is appraised at the grant
date and excludes the impact of any non-market vesting
conditions (for example, profitability and sales growth
targets).

All share-based compensation is recognised as an
expense in profit or loss over the vesting period if vesting
conditions apply, or recognised as an expense in full
at the grant date when the equity instruments granted
vest immediately unless the compensation qualifies for
recognition as asset, with a corresponding increase in
the share option reserves in equity. If vesting conditions
apply, the expense is recognised over the vesting period,
based on the best available estimate of the number of
equity instruments expected to vest. Non-market vesting
conditions are included in assumptions about the number
of equity instruments that are expected to vest. Estimates
are subsequently revised, if there is any indication that the
number of equity instruments expected to vest differs from
previous estimates.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in share option reserves
will be transferred to share premium. After vesting date,
when the vested share options are later forfeited or are still
not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserves will be transferred to
retained profits.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred for the acquisition, construction or
production of any qualifying asset are capitalised during the period
of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for its
intended use. A qualifying asset is an asset which necessarily
takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use
or sale. Other borrowing costs are expensed when incurred.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

(u)

(v)

Borrowing costs (Cont'd)

Borrowing costs are capitalised as part of the cost of a qualifying
asset when expenditure for the asset is being incurred, borrowing
costs are being incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare
the asset for its intended use or sale are being undertaken.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs ceases when substantially all the
activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended
use or sale are complete.

The Group capitalises borrowing costs for all eligible assets
where construction was commenced on or after 1 January 2009.
The Group continues to expense borrowing costs relating to
construction projects that commenced prior to 1 January 2009.

Income taxes
Income taxes for the year comprise current tax and deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary activities
adjusted for items that are non-assessable or disallowable for
income tax purposes and is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for tax
purposes. Except for goodwill and recognised assets and liabilities
that affect neither accounting nor taxable profits, deferred tax
liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred tax is measured
at the tax rates appropriate to the expected manner in which the
carrying amount of the asset or liability is realised or settled and
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period.

An exception to the general requirement on determining the
appropriate tax rate used in measuring deferred tax amount is
when an investment property is carried at fair value under HKAS
40 “Investment Property”. Unless the presumption is rebutted,
the deferred tax amounts on these investment properties are
measured using the tax rates that would apply on sale of these
investment properties at their carrying amounts at the reporting
date. The presumption is rebutted when the investment property is
depreciable and is held within a business model whose objective
is to consume substantially all the economic benefits embodied in
the property over time, rather than through sale.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(v)

(w)

Income taxes (Cont'd)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except when they
relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income in
which case the taxes are also recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares segment
information based on the regular internal financial information
reported to the executive directors for their decisions about
resources allocation to the Group’s business components and
for their review of the performance of those components. The
business components in the internal financial information reported
to the executive directors are determined following the Group’s
major product and service lines.

The Group has identified the following reportable segments:
Property development Property development and sale of
properties held for sale

Property leasing and sale of
investment properties

Property leasing and
investment

Each of these operating segments is managed separately as each
of the product and service lines requires different resources as
well as marketing approaches. All inter-segment transfers are
carried out at arm’s length prices.

The measurement policies the Group uses for reporting segment
results under HKFRS 8 are the same as those used in its financial

statements prepared under HKFRSs, except that:

- share of results of associates accounted for using the equity
method;

- loss on extinguishment of convertible notes;

- income tax expense;

- corporate income and expenses which are not directly
attributable to the business activities of any operating
segment; and

- equity-settled employee share-based payments

are not included in arriving at the operating results of the operating
segment.

For the year ended 31 December 2013
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z—=F+-A=-+—ALFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

(w)

(x)

Segment reporting (Cont'd)

Segment assets include all assets but exclude goodwill and
interests in associates. In addition, corporate assets which are
not directly attributable to the business activities of any operating
segment are not allocated to a segment, which primarily applies to
the Group’s headquarter.

Segment liabilities information is not reported or used by the
Group’s executive directors.

No asymmetrical allocations have been applied to reportable
segments.

Related parties

(@) A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of key management personnel of the
Group or the Company’s parent.

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member
of a group of which the other entity is a member).

(iii)  Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of the employees of the Group or an entity
related to the Group.

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).
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4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(x)

Related parties (Cont'd)

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by,
that person in their dealings with the entity and include:

(i) that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; and

(i)  dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or
domestic partner.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, the directors are
required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to
be relevant. Actual results differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in
the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

(a)

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year are discussed below:

(i) Estimated fair value of investment properties

The investment properties of the Group were stated at fair
value in accordance with the accounting policy stated in
note 4(f). The fair value of the investment properties are
determined by a firm of independent qualified professional
valuers and the fair value of investment properties as at
the end of the reporting period are set out in note 15. Such
valuations were based on certain assumptions, which are
subject to uncertainty and might materially differ from the
actual results. In making the judgement, consideration
has been given to assumptions that are mainly based
on market conditions existing at the end of the reporting
period and appropriate capitalisation rates. These estimates
are regularly compared to actual market data and actual
transactions entered into by the Group.

For the year ended 31 December 2013
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Cont'd)

(a)  Critical accounting estimates and assumptions (Cont'd)

(i)

(i)

(iv)

Impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually for any impairment of goodwill
in accordance with the accounting policy stated in note
4(s). The recoverable amount of cash-generating unit
that is based on its fair value less costs to sell, which was
determined according to the estimated sales proceeds with
respect to the possible disposal of the underlying cash-
generating unit. The details are set out in notes 13 and 40
to the financial statements.

Net realisable value of properties held for sale and
properties held under development

Management determines the net realisable value of
completed properties held for sale by using prevailing
market data such as most recent sale transactions and
market survey reports available from independent qualified
professional valuers, and internal estimates of costs based
on quotes by suppliers.

Management’s assessment of net realisable value of
properties held under development requires the estimates
of future cash flows to be derived from these properties.
These estimates requires judgement as to the anticipated
sale prices by reference to recent sales transactions in
nearby locations, rate of new property sales, marketing
costs (including price discounts required to stimulate
sales) and the expected costs to completion of properties,
the legal and regulatory framework and general market
conditions.

Impairment of accounts receivable

The Group’s management assesses the collectability of
accounts receivable. This estimate is based on the credit
history of the Group’s customers and the current market
condition.

Management reassesses the impairment provision at the
end of the reporting period.
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5.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Cont'd)

(a)  Critical accounting estimates and assumptions (Cont'd)

(v)

Valuation for convertible notes

The management uses their judgement in selecting an
appropriate valuation technique for the Group’s and the
Company’s convertible notes at initial recognition which
are not quoted in the active market. Valuation techniques
commonly used by market practitioners are applied. The fair
value of convertible notes at initial recognition is estimated
by DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited (“DTZ”), a firm of
independent qualified professional valuers, based on actual
transactions of the financial instruments in the market or
transactions of similar financial instruments which generally
represent the best estimate of the market value. The fair
value of convertible notes at initial recognition varies with
different variable and certain subjective assumptions. Any
changes in these variables so adopted may materially affect
the estimation of the fair value of convertible notes. Details
of the fair value of convertible notes at initial recognition are
disclosed in note 27.

(b)  Critical judgements in applying the entity’s accounting policies

()

(ii)

Revenue recognition

The Group has recognised revenue from sale of properties
held for sale during the year as disclosed in note 7. The
assessment of when an entity has transferred the significant
risks and rewards of ownership to a buyer requires
examination of the circumstances of the transaction. In
most cases, the transfer of risks and rewards of ownership
coincides with the transfer of the legal title or the passing
of possession to the buyer. The Group believes that
its recognition basis of sales as set out in note 4(r) is
appropriate and is in line with the current practice adopted
in the PRC.

Income tax

The Group is subject to income tax in various jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining the
amount of the provision of tax and the timing of payment
of the related taxation. Where the final tax outcome is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and deferred
tax provisions in periods in which such determination are
made.

For the year ended 31 December 2013
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z—=F+-A=+—ALHFE

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Cont'd)

(b)  Critical judgements in applying the entity’s accounting policies
(Contd)

(i)

(iii)

Income tax (Cont'd)

The Group is subject to land appreciation tax (“LAT”) in
the PRC. However, the implementation and settlement
of this tax varies among various tax jurisdictions in cities
of the PRC, and the Group has not finalised certain LAT
calculation and payments with local tax authorities in
the PRC. Accordingly, significant judgement is required
in determining the amount on the appreciation of land
value and its related LAT. The Group recognised LAT
based on management’s best estimates according to the
understanding of the tax rules.

During the year, the Group incurred LAT of approximately
HK$6,062,000 (2012: HK$6,273,000) which was charged
to the consolidated income statement as income tax
expense. The directors considered the amount charged to
the consolidated income statement to be adequate as this is
calculated according to the method which is in compliance
with the existing rules and interpretation of LAT.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or
deferred tax assets arising from investment properties that
are measured using the fair value model, the management
has reviewed the Group’s investment properties portfolio
and concluded that certain investment properties of the
Group are held under a business model whose objective
is to consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment properties over time. Therefore,
in determining the Group’s deferred taxation on these
investment properties, the management has determined
that the presumption set out in Amendments to HKAS
12 “Deferred Tax — Recovery of Underlying Assets” that
investment properties measured using the fair value model
are recovered through sale is rebutted.
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION

In identifying its operating segments, management generally follows the
Group’s service lines, which represents the main products and services
provided by the Group. The Group has identified the following reportable

segments.

Property development

Property development and

sale of properties held for sale

Property leasing and investment :

Property leasing and sale of

investment properties

Each of these operating segments is managed separately as each of
these products and service lines requires different resources as well as

marketing approaches.

For the year ended 31 December 2013, there have been no changes
from prior years in the measurement methods used to determine

operating segments and reported segment profit or loss.

Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market prices.

For the year ended 31 December 2013
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The revenue and profit generated by the Group’s operating segments are AEEZDESEHREORERABFBMAOT
summarised as follows:
2013
—E-=F
Property
Property investment
development and leasing Elimination Total
YIERE
MEERR kg ESE] #st
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FERT FET FET FHET
Revenue: Wzs -
From external customers KEINARF 199,485 12,917 - 212,402
Inter-segment revenue oy il = = - -
Total segment revenue FEb gl 199,485 12,917 - 212,402
Reportable segment profit A E2FD\EF 15,801 11,494 = 27,295
Interest income FEUA 3,488 1,656 - 5,144
Depreciation of property, plant and Y% BEREETE
equipment (472) (1,123) - (1,595)
Loss on disposal of investment properties — HEREYHEREIE - (150) - (150)
Impairment loss on properties held for sale  F &Y REEE (14,836) - - (14,836)
Fair value adjustments on investment BEMEND R BEFRE
properties - 11,101 - 11,101
Finance costs BE AR - (1,828) - (1,828)
Reportahle segment assets 2R BEE 1,090,503 405,396 = 1,495,899
Additions to non-current segment assets FAERDDEEERE
during the year 124 350 - 474

New Heritage Holdings Ltd.

Annual Report 2013



Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ER AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z-—=F+-_A=+—HULHFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Contd) 6. ZEERE)
2012
—EF——4F
Property
Property investment
development and leasing Elimination Total
P E
YIFEER kHE K @5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT FAT FAT
Revenue: W
From external customers KEINARE 258,937 13,165 = 272,102
Inter-segment revenue AU - - - -
Total segment revenue FREaR Nl 258,937 13,165 = 272,102
Reportable segment profit A 23D FBEF] 22,420 16,400 = 38,820
Interest income B YA 2,694 619 - 3,313
Depreciation of property, plant and Y% -~ B KRG E
equipment (491) (1,866) - (2,357)
Gain on disposal of investment properties  HE&ERE Y E IS = 2,477 = 2,477
Impairment loss on properties held for sale  FE Y%A EEEE (759) = = (759)
Fair value adjustments on investment KEMENN R BEAE
properties - 22,337 - 22,337
Finance costs (LRI = (1,937) = (1,937)
Reportable segment assets A2/ BEE 1,034,068 348,629 - 1,382,697
Additions to non-current segment assets FRIERBDBEERE
during the year 5 79 - 84
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd)

o

The total presented for the Group’s operating segments reconcile to the
Group’s key financial figures as presented in the financial statements as

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z—=F+-"A=+—HIFE
PEER(E)

MBS MERMES)  AEENLEED BEREARE
BT EMBEREROT

follows:
2013 2012
—B—= —E—_F
HK$’000 HK$'000
Fi&xT FAET
Total segment profit WA FEEF 27,295 38,820
Share of results of associates i =N ES 19,848 20,417
Gain on deregistration of a subsidiary Gl [N ES NGl 8,898 =
Equity-settled employee share-based payments LA A E AR D ST A B B 3UE - (2,947)
Corporate overheads RAEERY (35,687) (25,235)
Other unallocated income HEARDERIA 1,215 173
Profit before income tax BREFIEFH AT B F] 21,569 31,228
Reportable segment assets AI2mNEEE 1,495,899 1,382,697
Goodwill EES 29,249 37,048
Interests in associates RN TR ERS 137,922 137,402
Corporate assets NEEE 213,806 59,476
Total assets BEE 1,876,876 1,616,623

No geographical information is presented as the operations, major
customers and assets of the Group are substantially located in the PRC.

The Group has a large number of customers and there was no significant
revenue derived from specific external customers for the years ended 31

December 2013 and 2012.

HRAEENER  TERFREEASZUNT
MW EES MR ER -

AEBBEEAERF HE-_T—=—FK_ZT—=
F+-A=+—HLEFETEREBBETIIATED
EAUES °

7. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME 7. WEKREMBA

2013 2012
—E-—=F —E—_F
HK$’000 HK$'000
Fi&xT FAET

Revenue, which also represents the Group’s turnover W (MRS E )
Proceeds from sale of properties held for sale HEFEYEEHIE 199,485 258,937
Rental income HEeWA 12,917 13,165
212,402 272,102

Other income Hagug A

Interest income FEBHA 5,509 3,325
Exchange gain, net FE 5 Uz 5 =R 844 233
Others HAith 2,748 1,178
9,101 4,736
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-Z-—=F+-_A=+—HILFE

8. FINANCE COSTS 8. RERAK
2013 2012
—E-=F —EF——4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Interest charges on borrowings which are repayable BARAFENEENEENSEA
within five years:
Bank loans WITER 3,260 10,093
Other loan HibER 6 8
Imputed interest expense on loans from FEIEAR IR B R FE ST SR
non-controlling shareholders 1,066 2,071
4,332 12,172
Interest charges on borrowings which are repayable ARAFREZENEENSER
after five years:
Bank loans RITER 420 497
4,752 12,669
Interest charges on convertible notes (Note 27) ARREEOF S ER (H227) 9,010 9,188
Total interest expense on financial liabilities not WIER A A BENERVIFRENE R
at fair value through profit or loss BEMN BT B%E 13,762 21,857
Less: amount capitalised in properties held W BEBERPYEE MR EEES
under development * (11,934) (19,920)
1,828 1,937
S The finance costs have been capitalised at a rate of 3.85% (2012: 3.29%) * BERACIRENEI85% (ZT——4fF :329%)&
per annum. Ak o

BASMIIRRITEENBERE  BEREER
ek ATE M E BT EIEE A B E IR B EE IR
NEHER - HE-T—=FEx"T——F+—f
=t HUIEFE  BERERESERNETEES
A B2 B4 A1,957,0005 7T & 1,811,000 7T °

The analysis shows the finance costs of bank borrowings, including term
loans which contain a repayment on demand clause, in accordance with
the agreed scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan agreements.
For the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012, the interest on bank
borrowings which contain a repayment on demand clause amounted to
approximately HK$1,957,000 and HK$1,811,000 respectively.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z—=F+-"A=+—HIFE

9. PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 9. BREIBHBIAER
2013 2012
=—2—= —E——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Profit before income tax is arrived at after charging/ BETSFBIER &%, (5T A):
(crediting):
Carrying amount of properties sold ELMENREE 163,013 219,356
Impairment loss on properties held for sale FEMERNREEE 14,836 759
Cost of properties held for sale recognised as expense &R /&5 FIFE WA 177,849 220,115
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment VI BB RS E 2,621 3,581
Less: amount capitalised in properties held under B BRERPMEENMENEEE
development (350) (292)
2,271 3,289
Outgoings in respect of investment properties that BEANAFEEEARSWAZIRE
generated rental income during the year PR F 2,844 3,087
Operating lease charges in respect of land AT REFHLEHEEA
and buildings 356 309
Impairment loss on goodwill (note 13) EEREEE(EI13) 7,799 -
Auditor’s remuneration ZE AN S
— Audit services —ZH RS 1,350 1,280
— Other services — H A AR 167 634
Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments BIXA(BREESNE)
(note 34(a)) (K17E34(a))
— Directors’ fee —EEHe 836 836
— Salaries and other benefits in kind —Fe REMEYH = 32,994 33,378
— Amount recognised as expense for retirement — R ARIREFFZ EEE
benefit costs 2,130 2,549
— Equity-settled employee share-based payments — AR EE RGO I HE B IR
(note 30) (K1a£30) = 2,947
Less: amount capitalised in properties held B BRERPMEE M EEE
under development (11,415) (13,276)
24,545 26,434
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEME  BERRENER 8 8,174
Impairment loss on amount due from an associate JE UL — R 1 B B R B S 18 - 192
Impairment loss on other receivables HAth e W IB R R (B & 1R 74 1,602
Loss/(Gain) on disposal of investment properties HEREYENER, (W) 150 (2,477)
Exchange gain, net bE 5 e 5 58 (844) (233)
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10.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10. FRSBIBA
2013 2012
—B-=F —ET——F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Htat FET FAT
Current tax — the PRC BNEABL 18 — rh
Corporate income tax EMER (a) 15,273 8,699
LAT T AR (b)
— current year —NEE 6,062 6,273
— over-provision in prior years — BT FEBRERE = (7,380)
21,335 7,592
Deferred taxation (note 18) EAERE (f/7718) 4,895 8,138
Total income tax charge S BREsE 26,230 15,730
Notes: Haz
(@)  The PRC corporate income tax is computed according to relevant laws and (a) FREBEMESRIRERBEBEEERTE - &
regulations in the PRC. The applicable income tax rate was 25% for the EE—=FR-TE—-FF+-_A=+—HILEFE
years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012. K@ A TS BB R B25% ©
No Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for as the Group had no AR AEERAFEN ETMGTERBRFN (=T
estimated assessable profits for the year (2012: Nil). —ZF E) Y ESEAEAMNGRET R
fh -
(b)  Under the Provisional Rules on LAT Implementation Rules of the PRC (b) WRER—NANAF—A=+tBHEBENTELHIE

implemented on 27 January 1995, all gains from the sales or transfer of
land use rights, buildings and their attached facilities in the PRC are subject
to LAT at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% on the appreciation
of land value, being the proceeds of sales of properties less deductible
expenditures including cost of land use rights and all property development

expenditures.

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the profit

ERTTIRGIERMA - PTARHEEXERNF
M L fE AE BT RERRENESHKRES B
AR ET - BRI ER(AEE DS
FRSSRR AT RS - B AL b A A K P
BEMEBRAX)NRERTE - H30%E60%T

&

=7 °

REFEPAISHF AT AR S WA ROKR A ETATR

before income tax per the consolidated income statement as follows: AHERWOT -
2013 2012
—E—=F —T -5
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Profit before income tax R TS LA & F 21,569 31,228
Tax on profit before income tax, calculated at A BT S R AN A A TR R
the rates applicable in the tax jurisdiction concerned S EBR SR B AT IE 6,161 11,608
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses N HF AL MRS E 11,385 10,701
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue BERTT T TS & (4,057) (13,755)
Tax effect of temporary difference arising from RO ERAF B R =587
withholding tax for undistributed profits EENRSTE 1,549 1,798
Tax effect of unused tax losses not recognised RIERAB AR BEIENHR G E 3,703 5,023
LAT charge/(credit) THEER T H O (KR) 6,062 (1,107)
Others Hith 1,427 1,462
Income tax expense for the year REEFEHRAX 26,230 15,730
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z—=F+-"A=+—HIFE

11. DIVIDENDS 11. BRE
Dividends attributable to the year: FREERE
2013 2012
—g—= —E—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FBT FAT
Proposed 2012 final dividend of BT ——FREAREESRERR
0.2 HK cents per ordinary share 0.2 - 2,571
The final dividend proposed after the year ended 31 December 2012 HE_Z——F+-_A=+—HIFEEHEIRR
had not been recognised as a liability at the end of the reporting period, IR B W ARBEHRRERSEE  BEIIEZE
but reflected as an appropriation of retained profits for the year. ERNREBEFDIK
12. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE 12. ER(EBE) B
The calculation of basic (loss)/earnings per share is based on the BREAN(EE) /BRI TERA DR G ER FELEIE
loss attributable to the owners of the Company of approximately #914,739,0007% T( = T — — 4 : & 78,208,000
HK$14,739,000 (2012: profit of HK$8,208,000) and on weighted BIL)UARFANBBETLTBEBRMAMEFHH
average of 1,291,544,460 (2012: 1,284,780,869) ordinary shares in 1,291,544,460/% (== — =4 : 1,284,780,869k% )&t
issue during the year. Ho
No adjustment has been made to the basic loss per share as the BE-_Z—=F+-A=+—HILEFENRTHERE
outstanding share options (note 30) and convertible notes (note 27) had A& (P 7E30) R AT AR SRR (M 5327 ) ¥ B AR E A &S
an anti-dilutive effect on the basic loss per share for the year ended 31 BAARBESE WUARHTRENGEELSH
December 2013. o
In the calculation of diluted earnings per share attributable to the owners FEERE T —HF+_A=T—RHLEFENEKR
of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2012, the potential RIREEEEREBERTR - RRAQRAJRERE
shares arising from the conversion of the Company’s convertible notes BEANEBERMSENARABRREESRE
would increase the earnings per share attributable to the owners of the MoEEAEERMARESESE  BWUEFER
Company and was not taken into account as they had an anti-dilutive Ao Bt ARBIREELESREERFIZARRA A
effect. Therefore, the diluted earnings per share attributable to the f& AL 2 5 498,208,000 T REHE T ——F
owners of the Company is based on the profit attributable to the owners T A=+—HALEEEEETETBERANETL S
of the Company of approximately HK$8,208,000 and on weighted 1,286,858,0750 5+ & + B4 8 % B 172,077,206
average of 1,286,858,075 ordinary shares outstanding during the year MEBRENTE  ARGTESRERRFNNEER
ended 31 December 2012, being the weighted average number of 7 hN#E S5 E01,284,780,869F% °
ordinary shares of 1,284,780,869 used in basic earnings per share
calculation adjusted for the effect of share options issued of 2,077,206.
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#

T—F =

E-T-ZHFtA=t—RALFE

B RS ER AR M

13. GOODWILL 13. BHE

Group

REE
2013 2012
—B-=F —F——4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FAET
Balance as at 1 January R—B—BrN&s 37,048 37,048

Derecognised on subsidiaries in the process R FERIEETI TS 2 M B

of deregistration NS (242) =
Impairment loss REEE (7,557) -
Balance as at 31 December R+ A=1+—Hr&sH 29,249 37,048

The goodwill as at 31 December 2013 comprises mainly goodwill arising
from the acquisition of New Heritage Investments Limited (“NHIL") of
approximately HK$33,672,000 in 2005.

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the recoverable amount for
the cash-generating units (“CGU"), the underlying hotel and property
operations, in relation to NHIL was based on fair value less costs to
sell, which was determined according to the estimated sales proceeds
with respect to the possible disposal of the entire interests in NHIL and
its immediate holding company, Accordcity Limited (“Accordcity”),
as detailed in note 40 to the financial statements. The recoverable
amount of NHIL and Accordcity determined using the above basis is
HK$170,252,000, which is lower than its carrying value. Accordingly,
impairment losses of HK$7,550,000 and HK$7,000 are allocated to the
goodwill attributed to NHIL and Accordcity, respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2013, New Heritage Land Limited and
New Heritage Properties Limited were in the process of deregistration.
The recoverable amounts of these companies as separate CGUs
are estimated to be nil, which are lower than their carrying values.
Accordingly, impairment losses amounting to HK$242,000 are
recognised for the goodwill of these CGUs.

R-E—=F+_A=+—HHREBEEZE/EN=
ST RAFRBEFECEBRAR(FHECEDEE
HIEE 433,672,000/ 7T °

BHE-_ZT—=F+"A=+—H8 ABEHELER
SCEABM(RESELSEMN])  HEABERDE
EBMA RS ERA A BEREEXASE R
0] B S B A 1 2 R B B B 4E IR 2 AlAccordcity
Limited ([ Accordcity ) &9 & 2B # &= (20 B 7% 3k 2 Ffi
FTA0FRHI R ) RIS SHE R EEE - @A Ll
FHAEEE TF A T4 > % K AccordcityR) R Ug 5] € X8 &
170,252,000/ 7T * REKEEARK - Bt - D514
7,550,0007% 7T, }2 7,000 7T 8 55 (8 518 2 B & 5 4
122 N Accordcity K i 22 o

HEZZ—=F+-_A=+—"HIFE  F2HE
BRARMENEBR AR EEETEN - AN
FZEERBYIRCEEBMN ARG KD
SR WERRREZEEE Bt ZFHSEL
BB MY ER (B RS 1R R 55242,000/8 7T
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - GROUP 14. Y% - BERRE - FEE

Leasehold Operating Furniture
land Leasehold Motor and office and
and buildings  improvements vehicles equipment fixtures Total
HELH HEME EER HHR
kEF £1& BE O RAERE #E st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TERT FiER FTAT THEx THER
At 1 January 2012 RZZE——F—F—H
Cost [B%N 62,439 10,235 3,250 7,195 2,762 85,881
Accumulated depreciation 2FHE (7,170) (8,550) (1,578) (5,675) (2,004) (24,977)
Net book amount REFE 55,269 1,685 1,672 1,520 758 60,904
Year ended 31 December 2012 HE-_T—-F
+ZR=+—HILtFE
Opening net book amount FHRmFE 55,269 1,685 1,672 1,520 758 60,904
Additions NE = = = 24 271 295
Disposals HE (7,641) (55) = (524) (127) (8,347)
Depreciation e (856) (1,052) (517) (842) (314) (3,581)
Exchange differences bE X ZHE 69 5 9 1 4 88
Closing net book amount FREMFE 46,841 583 1,164 179 592 49,359
At 31 December 2012 and R-E——F
1 January 2013 +-A=+-ARK
—2-=%-A-H
Cost [B%N 51,082 9,866 3,270 4,668 2,668 71,554
Accumulated depreciation 23HE (4,241) (9,283) (2,106) (4,489) (2,076) (22,195)
Net book amount REFE 46,841 583 1,164 179 592 49,359
Year ended 31 December 2013 BE-_E-=£
TZA=+—-HLEE
Opening net book amount FURmEE 46,841 583 1,164 179 592 49,359
Additions NE - 265 124 30 162 581
Disposals HE - (3) - 9 (24) (36)
Depreciation E (1,358) (510) (479) (68) (206) (2,621)
Exchange differences 0 5 =58 267 13 32 5 1" 328
Closing net hook amount FERREFE 45,750 348 841 137 535 47,611
At 31 December 2013 R-B—=F
+=A=+-8H
Cost BZR 51,434 10,344 3,478 4,755 2,785 72,796
Accumulated depreciation 2E (5,684) (9,996) (2,637) (4,618) (2,250) (25,185)
Net book amount IRERE 45,750 348 841 137 535 47,611
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z-—=F+-_A=+—HULHFE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT — GROUP (Contd)

Depreciation expenses have been included in:

B RS ER AR M

14. 9% - BERRE-FEE(&E)

FERXBEE TSR

2013 2012
—E-=F —T——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHT

Consolidated statement of financial position ERE SRR R
— capitalised in properties held under development —BRERTUEESN 350 292

Consolidated income statement trE R

— cost of sales —SHERA 129 343
— administrative expenses —1TE R 2,142 2,946
2,621 3,581

Net book amount of the Group’s leasehold land and buildings shown
above comprises:

EXFIR AR EEEE -3 A2 TR REFERYE

2013 2012
—E—=F —ET—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Properties in Hong Kong held under FIENEBERAHEE

long leases (not less than 50 years) (T H50%F) 37,483 38,286

Properties outside Hong Kong held under FFENEBAINDERPHEE
long leases (not less than 50 years) (TP HA50%F) 8,267 8,555
45,750 46,841

As at 31 December 2013, certain leasehold land and buildings of
approximately HK$37,483,000 (2012: HK$38,286,000) were pledged to
secure certain bank loans granted to the Group (note 26(a)).

RZT—=F+ZRA=+—H ' 437,483,000/ T
T — 4 : 38,286,000/ T ) K E THE - K&
BFEFTEA  UERASEERNSE TRITERK
(BftzE26(a))
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15.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z—=F+-"A=+—HIFE

15. REYE

Group

AEE
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Carrying amount at 1 January RK—A—B/EAE 304,594 297,340
Disposals HE (6,691) (17,540)
Fair value adjustments N BEFHE 11,101 22,337
Exchange differences Ve 5, = %A 9,895 2,457
Carrying amount at 31 December Rt+=-—A=+—BMEAE 318,899 304,594

As at 31 December 2013, certain investment properties of approximately
HK$167,680,000 (2012: Nil) were pledged to secure certain bank loans
granted to the Group (note 26(a)).

Investment properties included leasehold interests in land located in the
PRC with lease terms expiring from 2061 to 2065.

The fair values of the investment properties at 31 December 2013
were based on the valuation by Knight Frank Petty Limited (“KFP”)
(2012: DTZ), a firm of independent qualified professional valuers and
has appropriate qualifications and recent experiences in the valuation
of similar properties in nearby location. Valuations were based on the
properties’ open market value on 31 December 2013. The properties
have been valued by direct comparison method by making reference
to comparable sales evidence as available in the relevant market and
where appropriate, by capitalising the net rental income derived from the
existing tenancies with due allowance for the reversionary potential of the
respective properties as at the end of the reporting period.

RZZE—=F+_"_A=+—H ' %167,680,000/ 7T
TECF: BNETREVEANEREAEE
P E TRITER(MIEE26(a)) °

REMERUNTEN T EERER  HEHAR
ZER—FE_TROFREER °

ZEREMER—Z—=F+-_A=1+T—HBHAR
EBEDEERAGETERAR(H ) (ZF—
—F BRRTETHGERETE  KNRBIRE
REZMGER  BEALHRNIDIRUDENGER
B MEDREZEVER_FT—=F+_HA=1
—HOARTEETE - 2ENENEL2RIBETS
FAIE LB HERPIABR L BORETHE &
REEBEAMORBEABANES KA FE Nt
EEMMENREMRNEESEETOREE
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Contd) 15. REYHE(E)
Fair value hierarchy AREERER
The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s properties TREVWRREHRTENAEBMERIAEE -
measured at the end of the reporting period on a recurring basis, BEURBEHEAREE  WHBERBESUBKRE
categorised into the three levels fair value hierarchy as defined in EREIHK -—PABEMAENEEN ="RAAEE
HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The level into which a fair B - ARBEFEMSENERDZEUNTHE
value measurement is classified is determined with reference to the RTARASEBENBEREREZHEE ¢
observability and significance of the inputs used in the valuation
technique as follows:
Fair value measurements categorised into
AREETESH
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Fair value
£ -t 1 E=4 AREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAET FET FET
Recurring fair value measurement "EMEL
As at 31 December 2013 R-E—=F
+=HA=+—H
Residential apartments NEBEE - 90,035 = 90,035
Shopping arcades FEYIHERR - - 228,864 228,864
- 90,035 228,864 318,899

There were no transfers into or out of Level 2 and 3 during the year.
The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers between levels of fair value

hierarchy as at the reporting date in which they occur.

The movements during the year in the balance of Level 3 fair value

measurements are as below:

RER - BmBASBHNE BB - &%
BEOBRRARA A BEBSRZ MOWERTEENRE
FII% B T AR o

RERE=R AR EEBERNEHHIIMNT

2013

—E—=F

HK'000

FET

Opening balance (Level 3 recurring fair value) HYB(BE=REEMERREE) 214,520
Fair value adjustments DA BEAE 7,308
Exchange differences 7,036
Closing balance (Level 3 recurring fair value) BMARB(E=ZRREEQAEE) 228,864
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15.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Cont'd)

Fair value hierarchy (Cont’d)

15.

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties is a recurring fair
value measurement. The following table gives information about how
the fair values of these investment properties are determined, as well
as the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value measurement are
categorised (Level 2 to 3), based on the degree to which the inputs to the
fair value measurement is observable.

Investment properties
held by the Group in the

For the year ended 31 December 2013

HE-_Z—=+-A=+—HItEE
REWEE)
AREEEBR(E)
AEBEREMENA R EBEFALEE AR BB

B BEBRZERENERIAE %E’J#Eﬁ/ﬁ AR
U LFTEJE%J)\%(TFE’JT%E%&F RIEA
BERARBEE_Z=R)FENHABETH
EHERFIIMT

Relationship of

consolidated statement  Fair value Valuation unobservable inputs
of financial position hierarchy  technique(s) Significant unobservable input(s) to fair value Range
AEERGETBMRR AREE TR A s
BRIGHNIREYSE Z£&% fh{E T FEFAERE AHE A ABEENERE &=
Residential units — Level 2 Direct comparison  N/A N/A N/A
Suzhou Garden approach
Villa Phase 1, 2 and 3 Price per square meter is the
key input, based on market
observable transactions of similar
properties and adjusted to reflect
the conditions and locations of
the subject property.
(FEBE —$RESD B, HELEBE TEA NEA TERA
F—=—-=H
BUYHANBRAEERA - R
TSRUMENFBRRS - I
PR B R EMR B
B -
Shopping arcades Level 3 Income approach  Capitalisation rate, taking into The higher the 4.75% - 6.50%
account of the capitalisation of capitalisation rate,
rental income potential, nature the lower the fair
of the property and prevailing value.
market condition.
YIS E=M Wani% KERMEHRSWAES - HEH BERMELEEES 2 4.75%%£6.50%
BRI RIRITH ISR E AR REEBE -
fEbL o
Market unit rents were obtained The higher the RMB130 -
from making reference to the market unit rent, RMB187
current rent, the prevailing the higher the fair
market rental level and taking value.
into account of location, size etc.
(RMB/sg m/month).
MmSEMESI2RATHS 3 mBEEMESER 0 ARKL0E
IS HEEKT  WERLE AREEES ° AR#187

RNERRME (AR, TR

KA

There was no change to the valuation techniques during the year. The
fair value measurement is based on the above properties’ highest and

best use, which does not differ from their actual use.

FRARABOGERMLEEZES - AABEFENE
N ERYERNRERFEERER - BEERER
BRI EER

90
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16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(a) Investments in subsidiaries

Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ER AR M

16. RMBQEAVESR

(@) RHEQIRNRE

Company
¥NNE|

2013 2012
—B-=F —ET——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FAT
Unlisted, at cost JELET - BKAE 112,893 112,893
Capital contribution to a subsidiary m—REMfBAREE 11,700 11,700
Financial guarantees granted to subsidiaries BT B A MBS IE R 9,367 9,343
133,960 133,936

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries, each of which is a limited

R_ZE—=F+"A=+t—BXEWNBARARIERE

liability company, as at 31 December 2013 are as follows: RARDMFFREAT :
Place of Issued and fully paid
incorporation/ ordinary share capital/ Attributable equity Principal activities
Company name establishment registered capital interest (Place of operations)
By BRTRERE
NEER st EEREEMER FEfh R A e & TEEB(EX )
Directly Indirectly
E# Lk
New Heritage Corporation Limited* British Virgin 347 shares of US$1 each 100% - Investment holding (HK)
FrELEERAR)* Islands (“BVI") WREREELET REZR(EHE)
EBBRRES
New Heritage Development Limited Hong Kong (“HK") 156 shares of HK$1 each - 90%*  Investment holding (HK)
HEHRERAT ik 156 SREHIET RARBR(EE)
New Heritage Investments Limited HK 6,260,000 shares of - 100%  Investment holding (HK)
HELEERAT ik HK$10 ecch RALR(ER)
6,260,000/ BREHE10# T
New Heritage (IP) Limited* BVI 1 share of US$1 each - 100%  Holding of trademark of
ME(EX)BRAR" KBABREE IREREELET the Group (HK)
REASERIE(EE)
New Heritage Land Limited (“NHLL")***  HK 1 share of HK$1 each = 100%  Investment holding (HK)
HBEERAR(HEE) " Bk IRSREEIET RABIR(EE)
New Heritage Management Limited HK 1 share of HK$1 each - 100%  Administration vehicle of the
MEERBRRA BB IREREELET Group (HK)
EEASBTRIE(ER)
New Heritage Properties Limited HK 1 share of HK$1 each - 100%  Investment holding (HK)
(“NHPL")*** BE IREREELET REER(ER)
MEMEBRAR (=Y~
Prosper View Group Limited (“PVGL")** HK 10,000 shares of HK$1 each - 46%*  Investment holding (HK)
AR EERAR ([HEA ) BE 10,000 BREELET RERR(ES)
World Margin Limited HK 800,000 shares of HK$1 each - 100%  Treasury vehicle of
tHRARAA] B 800,000 BREELH T the Group (HK)
REARENHE TIE(EE)
Suzhou Garden Villa Development PRC (Note (a) US$20,550,000 - 86%"  Properties development and
& Management Co., Ltd.* B (Hi7t()) 20,550,000 ¢ investment (PRC)
BMRERERERER MEBRRIRE(PE)
BRAR
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z—=F+-"A=+—HIFE

16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd) 16. RME ARz (E)
Investments in subsidiaries (Cont'd) (a) RHEBATWIREE)
Place of Issued and fully paid
incorporation/ ordinary share capital/ Attributable equity Principal activities
Company name establishment registered capital interest (Place of operations)
MR ERIRAE
AR LB Lt LEREEMER bR AR TEER(EEHY)
Directly Indirectly
E# Gk
Suzhou New Heritage GF Limited* PRC (Note (b)) US$26,600,000 - 55%*  Properties development and
BINHSHERRAR" RE(fiz b)) 26,600,000 7T investment (PRC)
MERREREAE (RE)
Suzhou New Heritage WZA Limited*  PRC (Note (b)) US$8,000,000 - 100%  Properties development and
HEM R ERR AR FE(ffzt b)) 8,000,000 7T investment (PRC)
MERREREE (RE)
New Heritage WJA Limited* PRC (Note (b)) US$13,000,000 - 94%*  Properties development and
RTFEHESB AR B (ffaE b)) 13,000,000% 7T investment (PRC)
MEFRRIEE (RE)

* The statutory financial statements of these subsidiaries are not & ZEMBRRNEEMERRI REEALEES
audited by BDO Limited. SRR EBERA R EZ ©

o0 The Group has an effective interest of 46% in PVGL. In the opinion *x KEBEB AL %ERBE EERE K&
of the directors, the Group has the power to control over the BB RESHBARMH RAEEBUR - BUtiBAN S
financial and operating policies of PVGL and PVGL is consolidated IEREIFHRERPEE AR ©
in the financial statements accordingly.

***  NHLL, NHPL, Net Gold Investments Limited and NH (Guiyang) e O RKNRINRBARFNEME « FEME  RERKE
Limited, subsidiaries of the Company, which became dormant BRATIREBINEERARATFEFNEEE B
during the year, were in the process of deregistration as at T =F+_A=t+—HIEEBHEERL -

31 December 2013.

On 28 January 2013, Suzhou New Heritage Wuzhoug Limited, a NRZE—=%F—HA=-+/\B ' #%MNFEMEFR A
former subsidiary of the Group, the deregistration was successfully AI(AREBHAKE QR EXINREIMNTEE B
approved by Suzhou Bureau of Commerce successfully. Upon SHEE ¢ M A RIEUH & 2 A Y2k £8,898,000/4 7T
deregistration, gain on deregistration of a subsidiary of approximately EiRBAERE AR KFE29) -

HK$8,898,000 was recorded by the Group (note 29).

# Approximate percentage. & BABE AL

Notes: Mz

(@)  This subsidiary is registered as a sino-foreign cooperative joint (@) ZMBARIREBEFEEAZELATINGEEENA]
venture under the PRC law.

(b)  These subsidiaries are registered as wholly foreign owned (b) ZEWBARRBFEEARELRAINEBEDE -
enterprises under the PRC law.

(c) None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end (c)  MIEHR - BIENE QBB TEAERHES
of the reporting period.
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The amounts due are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on

16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Contd)
(b)  Amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries
demand.
(c)  Material non-controlling interests

(1)

PVGL

PVGL, a 46% owned subsidiary of the Company, has
material non-controlling interests (“NCI”).

Summarised financial information in relation to the NCI of
PVGL, before intra-group eliminations, is presented below:

16. RKEBARER (&)
(b)  FEM(FEA) BB A KR

FEFIRTYERIR - RERAREREEER

al

() ERFERES
(1) B

BEA(AR R RIEF A% B A R)
BABASRER R ([ R ) -

ERBAEEREaN M BEEREE
(REEARRIFELHEA) 25T

2013 2012
—E-=F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
For the year ended 31 December Z+-BA=+—HIFE
Revenue Wz = -
Profit/(Loss) for the year 2F|,(E518) 15,372 (5,692)
Total comprehensive income for the year /€ 2 E Ui z5 /858 15,372 (5,692)
Profit/(Loss) allocated to NCI B IR AT] (B518) 8,286 (3,068)
Dividends paid to NCI BT IR AR A AR - =
For the year ended 31 December BE+-HA=t—HLEE
Cash flows from operating activities BEETHNRERE (997) (190)
Cash flows from investing activities R ESNEESRE 10,163 4,171
Cash flows from financing activities BEEBNRERE 1,224 (4,510)
Net cash inflows/(outflows) HERA/ R )#5 10,390 (529)
As at 31 December Rt+t=B=+—H
Current assets TRENEE 11,021 19,352
Non-current assets SEmENEE 166,488 166,488
Current liabilities mENEaE 15,467 191,869
Non-current liabilities IERBAE 152,699 -
Net assets/(liabilities) BE/(8fE)FE 9,343 (6,029)
Accumulated non-controlling interests Ry 5,036 (3,250)
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16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

(c)  Material non-controlling interests (Cont'd)

)

Suzhou New Heritage GF Limited (“SNHGF”)

SNHGF, a 55% owned subsidiary of the Company, has

material NCI.

Summarised financial information in relation to the NCI
of SNHGF, before intra-group eliminations, is presented

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z—=F+-"A=+—HIFE

16. RIIBARIMER(E)

() EABRMERSD)

2)  FINFAHMEFRL A ([FNEFAEL)

ERINFAB (KRR BEo0%ERNIIB AR EEE

RIEPER AR -

BRSNTAIFEREEMBENME(NEEAR

BRI HA) 27T

below:
2013 2012
—E-=F —E—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAxT
For the year ended 31 December BE+-HA=1+—HLEE
Revenue Wz 129,841 115,566
Profit for the year FERER 18,180 16,614
Total comprehensive income for the year FE 2 E Wz 4258 27,303 18,874
Profit allocated to NCI B OB IEER S B F 12,299 8,502
Dividends paid to NCI EATIEIE AR 2R AR B 5,760 -
For the year ended 31 December BEt+t=-—A=t—HLEE
Cash flows from operating activities KEEHRIRESRE 492,510 46,098
Cash flows from investing activities KREEHRERE 458 109
Cash flows from financing activities MEEHIRESRE (456,529) (38,240)
Net cash inflows WA FE 36,439 7,967
As at 31 December A+=—B=+—H
Current assets MENVEE 356,922 360,392
Non-current assets EMENEE 425 444
Current liabilities TEaE 60,631 79,381
Non-current liabilities FErRBAaE 2,021 1,277
Net assets BEEFE 294,695 280,178
Accumulated non-controlling interests BT IEIERR i s 132,748 126,209
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
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17.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

B RS ER AR M

17. REEE R TRER

Group
REE
2013 2012
—E-=F —E—_F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
k=3 FHET FAET
Share of net assets FE(EEEFE (a) 137,678 137,158
Amount due from an associate JE U — RIS A BRI FRIE 244 436
Impairment loss BIEEE - (192)
(b) 244 244
137,922 137,402
Notes: Kzt -
(a) Particulars of associates as at 31 December 2013 are as follows: (@ R-T—=F+-A=1+—HEZARNFBELT :

(b)

Place of incorporation/

Percentage of

Company name establishment and operation interest held  Principal activities

AEEB SRS, BRI R & S it B FisERE AL FEXK

Beijing Landmark Towers Co., Ltd.* PRC 30.05%  Hotel ownership and property investment

EREHAARERRAR® A BRBERDERE

Art Shine Limited* HK 40%  Investment holding

FBATEE R A A BA REZER

o The statutory financial statements of these associates are not * ZEMENRNEEMBRREAREETEL
audited by BDO Limited. EERSTAEEAMERAAEZ -

The amount due is unsecured, interest-free and not repayable within twelve
months from the end of the reporting period.

(b) ABRFAREER 2L BHASREHRE

+—{EA

NEE -

Rz
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17. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Contd) 17. REE N RINER(E)
Notes: (Cont'd) Mz : (&)
(c) Summarised financial information (material associate) (c) TEBAN TN S E RS
Beijing Landmark Towers Co., Ltd. tE=E M AEARAR
2013 2012
—E-=F —T——fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
As at 31 December R+=B=+-—H
Non-current assets FERBEE 412,109 448,502
Current assets RENEE 182,541 141,961
Current liabilities mEBaE 115,918 106,971
Non-current liabilities FEnBEE 20,567 27,058
Included in the above amounts are: LS EERE -
Cash and cash equivalents RERIRESEEY 171,499 130,503
For the year ended 31 December BE+-A=+—HLEE
Revenue g 371,391 362,404
Profit from continuing operations for the year K EFELEENEEEF 66,048 67,944
Other comprehensive income for the year FEAMEEEE 3,692 13,250
Total comprehensive income for the year FE2MWEERE 69,740 81,194
Dividends received from an associate LK ER — gt 8 A RV AR 2, 24,929 22,051
Included in the above amounts are: L& REeE
Depreciation and amortisation e Ry 58,496 46,425
Interest income FBEUA 2,641 2,573
Income tax expense FriSRif 21,446 21,712
(d)  Summarised financial information (d) HBERHRE
Art Shine Limited FATEGBR A Al
2013 2012
—E-=F —ZT——fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
For the year ended 31 December BEt+=-A=+—HLEE
Loss from continuing operations for the year REFECENFERER 2 431
Total comprehensive income for the year FEEEKRERE (2) (431)
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-Z-—=F+-_A=+—HILFE

18. DEFERRED TAXATION

The movement in deferred tax assets/(liabilities) arising from temporary
differences are as follows:

18.

B RS ER AR M

EAEBLTH

ERERELNRENEEE (ABE)NEBNT

Group
AEH
In respect of
Fair value withholding
adjustments In respect tax for
on investment of provision  un-distributed
properties for LAT profits Total
REWER BT BEERDIK
AREBEFAE BEHEE BANENHS et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAxT FHT FAT
Balance as at 1 January 2012 R-ZE——F—F—HH
e (36,732) 2,011 (3,959) (38,680)
Deferred tax charged to the profit or loss RIBEARHRR AR ER IE
(note 10) (H1a£10) (4,495) (1,845) (1,798) (8,138)
Exchange differences & Z=%A (335) 1 (28) (362)
Balance as at 31 December 2012 RZE——F
and 1 January 2013 +-A=1+—HK
—E—=F—-H—H
EOFeT-23 (41,562) 167 (5,785) (47,180)
Deferred tax charged to the profit or loss PIBZ BRI HY R R T8
(note 10) (KizE10) (3,346) = (1,549) (4,895)
Exchange differences E 5 =% (1,393) 6 (112) (1,499)
Balance as at 31 December 2013 R=-T—=%
+=A=+—Hi&EER (46,301) 173 (7,446) (53,574)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding
tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from the foreign-
invested enterprises established in the PRC. The requirement is effective
from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December
2007. The Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes on dividends
distributed by those subsidiaries and an associate established in the PRC
in respect of earnings generated from 1 January 2008. The deferred tax
liabilities in respect of temporary differences attributable to undistributed
profits of the PRC subsidiaries and associate have been recognised in
profit or loss.

RBREMERETE  RABERIHIINEREKRA
FIMREE TR S RRIO%H AT - bR
ER-ZZNF-—A—BREN  BAR-ZZTL
FHtA=T—HARRELNERN - Bt - AEH
AN P BERIZA B AR R —HBE QRN -
TN\F— A —BARELENR DK S B
TR o wt o B B B R Bt 8 X ) 1 R D R &2 7
FEAEE R R RIEBIR B EE RS RT R -

FEERERAT —T-S£5H 97
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z—=F+-"A=+—HIFE

18. DEFERRED TAXATION (Cont'd) 18. ELEBIE(Z)
The following is the analysis of the deferred taxation balances for MG REENME  EERBASRSTAT ¢
financial reporting purposes:
Group Company
AEH RAF]
2013 2012 2013 2012
—EB—=f —E—_F —E-=F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHT FHERT FET
Deferred tax assets BRI E E 173 167 = =
Deferred tax liabilities FEEFIBEE (53,747) (47,347) - -
(53,574) (47,180) = =
The amount of the deferred tax asset not recognised during the year is FRREREERIBEERBLOT -
as follows:
Group Company
AEH RATF
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=F —E—_F —E-=F —E—_4F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FH&T FBT FHT
Tax effect of: M2
— unused tax losses — REVEEEE 52,736 31,112 52,709 30,286
Deferred tax asset in respect of tax losses has not been recognised AR ARKEHIBEEENRRFERENTATE
in the financial statements due to the unpredictability of future profit Bl - B AR B HREERBEEERRECERE
streams against which the tax losses can be utilised. The tax losses of BE -RAPRLENKBRARNHIBEEEEE5
the subsidiaries operating in the PRC can be carried forward for 5 years F o MREBLENNEBRRMNTIBEIERERT
and tax losses of the subsidiaries operating in Hong Kong will not expire BOEG T Em °
under the current tax legislation.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ER AR M

19. PROPERTIES HELD UNDER DEVELOPMENT — GROUP 19. BEPYE-FLEEH
2013 2012
—B-=F —ET——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT

Amounts comprise: SREE

Construction costs JEE= AT IN 315,750 234,314
Land use rights T A 125,925 175,004
Interest capitalised F &AL, 15,410 9,498
457,085 418,816

The capitalisation rate used to determine the amount of interest incurred

eligible for capitalisation in 2013 was 3.85% (2012: 3.29%).

Properties held under development included leasehold interests in land

located in the PRC with lease terms expiring from 2047 to 2077.

As at 31 December 2012, certain leasehold interests in land of
approximately HK$71,597,000 were pledged to secure certain bank
loans granted to the Group. The related bank loans have been fully
repaid during the year ended 31 December 2013 and the pledged

properties held under development have been released.

20. PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE — GROUP

Properties held for sale included leasehold interests in land located in

the PRC with lease terms expiring from 2061 to 2077.

The carrying amounts of certain carparks under properties held for sales
were above the recoverable amounts determined according to prevailing
property market conditions and impairment losses in the amount of

HK$14,836,000 were recognised accordingly.

As at 31 December 2013, the carrying value of the leasehold
interests in land amounted to approximately HK$93,241,000 (2012:

HK$74,808,000).

21. INVENTORIES - GROUP

Inventories represent low value consumables carried at cost.

20.

21.

T =FRARBETARBEMMEIGFRF S A
BRI EF3.85%(=F—=4F : 3.29%) °

ERPYZE/RUNPEO T EEER - HEH
T FE_THFREER

R —F+-A=+—RH ATIHEERHEDH
71,597,000 7T AR « UIERAEEFMESH
HETRTER - HE-_T—=F+-_A=+—H81t
FEHM  FRARTEREBREER - MERE
RPMED ERER -

FEVXR - EEH

FEMEERUNTEN L HERED  HEHAH
“ER—FE_TFREER

ETEFEDEANEEUNREESNRBRT

Y& TSR EE B AT Y m £ 8 - B 14,836,000
B IT 2 BIEERBERER o

RZZE—=F+"RA=+—8 T#HHEENER
E{E#) 793,241,000/ 7T( =& — = : 74,808,000
BT °

- K

FEIERERAEARNEESER
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22. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-Z-—=ZF+-_A=+—AULHFE

2. BUWERR

Group
REE
2013 2012
—EB-—=F —E—_F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Accounts receivable FEURBR TR 166 139

Accounts receivable represents rental income from leasing properties.
Monthly rents are normally received in advance and sufficient rental
deposits are held to minimise credit risk. Accounts receivable generally
have credit terms of 30 to 60 days (2012: 30 to 60 days) and no interest
is charged. All accounts receivable are denominated in Renminbi. The
ageing analysis of the Group’s accounts receivable, based on invoice
dates, is as follows:

MR RIEHENENHSWA - SAESBER
FURE - TRERENEERENMEEERR -
EU R EEH —RRI0EC0R(ZF——F: 30
E60K) BAFE - FIEBUEIRFAARBHE - &
SERUKRRORERZERAAMAOT

Group
rEE
2013 2012
—E-—=F —E—_F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Within 30 days 30 KRR 127 139
31 - 60 days 31 — 60X 39 -
166 139

The carrying amount of accounts receivable is considered a reasonable
approximation of fair value as this financial asset, which is measured at
amortised cost, is expected to be paid within a short timescale, such that
the time value of money impact is not significant.

Accounts receivable, based on due date, which are past due are
analysed as follows:

RUERFHEMERESAEEONAEE Bk
He R EEDIRBHKRAIR - WIRBREH AT
o Bt - WESBANESRHETE -

B YR IR BB DT T -

Group
TEE
2013 2012
—EB-—=fF —ECF
HK$’000 HK$'000
F&xT FAxT
Fully conformed with credit term BB EUE; 166 139
Past due but not impaired BB KR (E = -
166 139

As at 31 December 2013, accounts receivable of approximately
HK$166,000 (2012: HK$139,000) were neither past due nor impaired.
These related to a number of customers for whom there was no recent
history of default.

RZZ—Z=F+-A=1+—H  £544166,000/%
JTT(ZZ— =4 : 139,000/ 7 ) H) FE U BR 3R R 380 A
MOBE - RIB TR EENTCHENZERER

°
&
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
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23.

24,

B RS ER AR M

DEPOSITS PAID, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER 23. Efi#2& - EAREREMEKRFIE
RECEIVABLES
Group
EE
2013 2012
—B-=F —ET——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Deposits paid and prepayments BfES RIEFIE 13,961 11,813
Other receivables H A fE U ROE 33,582 20,673
47,543 32,486
The carrying amounts of deposits paid and other receivables approximate EffikekEMERFERABEEE QAL EBEE
to their fair values. Other receivables were neither past due nor impaired B o E b EWGRIEN KRB HA TR R R E - BT AN A
and were related to a number of counterparties for whom there was no HREEBNZZZSHTER -
recent history of default.
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 24. FEER™

Based on the invoice dates, the ageing analysis of the Group’s accounts
payable is as follows:

REBENERRNRRZEZEOTNAT -

Group

TEE
2013 2012
—E-=F —E——F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
HiaE FET FAT
Within 30 days 30K 8 75
31 - 60 days 31 — 60X 12 9
61 — 90 days 61 — 90K = -
91 — 365 days 91 — 365k - 91
Over 365 days 365K E 1,420 1,345
Rent received on behalf of landlords REEWRENTEE (a) 1,440 1,520

Accrued construction cost and FEEHIREER AN R E A

other project-related expenses 15 B AR (b) 110,739 90,677
112,179 92,197

All amounts are short term and hence the carrying values of the Group’s
accounts payable are considered to be a reasonable approximation of
fair value.

Notes:

(a) Rent received on behalf of landlords comprised net rental received from tenants
after netting off fee charged to them provided by external service providers.

(b) Included in the above amounts are construction cost and other project-
related expenses payable amounting to approximately HK$110,739,000 as
at 31 December 2013 (2012: HK$90,677,000) which were accrued based
on the terms of the relevant agreements and the progress of the projects,
and were not due for payment as at 31 December 2013.

FRA SRR B IR - AR B R N AR R A BRI (B
WREREARBEAERS °

(@) AREZWERNESERERMESWEEE S HERINR
BRTS {44 1E P2 PAT URCER R PR 1R RO TS 3R

(b) LRSEEER-_T-—=F+A=+—BHEN

BRER R N B A IR B 48 B X 49110,739,0007% 7T

—T— 4 :90,677,00087T) ' ZeFEIIIRIEA

B GRRAEEERERF BN T —=F+=
HA=1t—BHARBIEMT -
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25. ACCRUALS, DEPOSITS RECEIVED AND OTHER  25.

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z—=F+-"A=+—HIFE

BSER - eizs R HMENFER

PAYABLES
Group
AEE
2013 2012
—F—= —E——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FAT
Deposits received BliES 393,724 106,455
Accruals and other payables FEEH B A R H bR 5RI8 22,521 28), 355
416,245 135,810

All amounts are short term and hence the carrying values of the Group’s
accruals, deposits received and other payables are considered to be a

reasonable approximation of their fair values.

PAEFREARES RAEAKEEER  2%R
S REMENFENERIERRESABEIEAR

26. BORROWINGS 26.
Group
AEE
2013 2012
—E—=F —F—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FAT
Current liabilities REAE
Portion of term loans from banks due AR—FANEIHEED
for repayment within one year FEHRITE RIS 32,426 77,782
Portion of term loans from banks due for AR —F R EEERER
repayment after one year which contain BEREREEEK
a repayment on demand clause H)TE BRERTTE N EB 1D 26,465 44,683
Loan from a related company —HREARER - 5,000
Loans from non-controlling shareholders FEFERRAR R E R 26,282 92,062
85,173 219,527
Non-current liabilities FEREBEE
Bank loans IRITER 21,632 =
Loans from non-controlling shareholders IR R E R 74,823 19,771
96,455 19,771
181,628 239,298

The interest-bearing bank borrowings, including the term loans repayable
on demand, are carried at amortised cost. None of the portion of term
loans due for repayment after one year, which contain a repayment on
demand clause and is classified as a current liability, is expected to be

settled within one year.

SERTER(BRAREREENEMEF) IR
AR - AR —FRIBEENESRENR
EEGRASBARBDEENEHERLDRGH
ARN—FRNFE -
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HE-Z-—=F+-_A=+—HILFE

26. BORROWINGS (Contd)

Borrowings were repayable as follows:

Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ER AR M

26. EE(#E)

EEMT

BIEES

Group
REE
2013 2012
—EB—=Ff —E—_F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
HiaE FExT FET
Within one year —FR
Term loans, unsecured TERE K - IR (d) 14,854 17,267
Term loans, secured TEHER - G (a),(d) 17,572 60,515
Loan from a related company, unsecured —FEREARER - EIEKH (c) - 5,000
Loans from non-controlling shareholders, IEERIRE R
unsecured FEAR IR (b) 26,282 92,062
In the second year EFA
Term loans, unsecured TEHER - I (d) 8,713 9,855
Term loans, secured TEHER - A (a),(d) 14,646 10,915
Loans from non-controlling shareholders, IEERIRE R
unsecured FEAR IR (b) = 19,771
In the third to fifth year =FERF
Term loans, unsecured TEHER - S (d) = 6,160
Term loans, secured TEHER - HEHE (a),(d) 24,738 115,735}
Loans from non-controlling shareholders, IEERIRE R
unsecured FEAR IR (b) 74,823 -
After the fifth year AELAE
Term loans, secured TEHE - AHEE (a),(d) = 2,000
181,628 239,298
seemaman —s—=s¢5 103
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26. BORROWINGS (Cont'a)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Bank loans were secured by pledges of certain leasehold land and buildings
and investment properties of the Group (notes 14 and 15).

Loans from non-controlling shareholders are unsecured and interest-free.
The loans were initially recognised at fair value and subsequently stated at
amortised cost which was estimated by discounting the nominal value of the
loans at effective interest rate. During the year ended 31 December 2013,
the Group made partial repayment to non-controlling shareholders and
renegotiated the terms of certain loans with non-controlling shareholders.
The directors considered that such early repayment and renegotiation of
terms represented a modification of the original loans and accordingly, the
effective interest rates were adjusted at the date of modification.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the effective interest rates of the
loans were in the range of 2.08% to 4.55% (2012: 1.61% to 4.55%) per
annum.

Loan from a related company, Chong Lai (Panama) S.A. (“Chong Lai"), is
unsecured, interest bearing at HIBOR plus 3% per annum and repayable
on or before 14 December 2013 (note 35(b)). The effective interest rate of
the loan was 3.28% (2012: 3.28%) per annum during the year.

The amounts due are based on the scheduled repayment dates set out in
the loan agreements and ignore the effect of any repayment on demand
clause. These borrowings bore floating interest rates.

The carrying amounts of the borrowings are denominated in the following
currencies and have the following effective interest rates at the end of the reporting

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z—=F+-"A=+—HIFE

26. fEE (&

Wit -

(@) HAOEFRUAEEETHEHELHREFREREDE
(MIFE14 R 15 E RIS -

(b) EERBRRERAEEARLE - ZPERERR
ARBERER - ERZEBEKATIER - BHRAT
NEBEMEFTRZUEROEEGRSE - B#E=
E=F+A=1+—1FE  AEBERIFZRE
REETHDERREFERERENERE TE
BOGR  EFTRRERRPEERERESHER
BER HERNERREZHE FHE -

HE_Z-—=FT_A=+—HILFE EFER
MENFZF2.08%%4.55% (ZF—=_4F : 1.61%
F4.55%) 2 °

(©) #8:# A F]Chong Lai (Panama) S.A. ([Chong Lail) Y& TR
REEE - AEARITRZEREFHEM3%TEILE
R-ZZT—=F+=A+mAskzATfEE(HE350b)) -
FEREFNERERNRE328%(—F——4F:328%) °

(d) ABRFEADREFHEABOEEERDDPLHE
£ WEAREMRERLKEREGTNZE - 256
ERFBM RS o

BRI T5IS0 AHEEAT - RIS BR M EIRF
BT :

period:
Group
EE
2013 2012
—E-=F —E—_—fF
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
HK$’000 per annum HK$'000 per annum
FET B FFI= FET BIRER| =
Hong Kong dollars BIT 59,850 1.97% -4.55% 79,155 1.28% -4.55%
United States dollars ET 93,490 2.42% - 2.45% 110,543 1.61% —2.46%
Renminbi AR 28,288 6.22% 49,600 6.40%
181,628 239,298

The Group regularly monitors its compliance with the covenants of the banking
facilities, is up to date with the scheduled repayments of the term loans and does
not consider it probable that the banks will exercise their discretion to demand
repayment for so long as the Group continues to meet these requirements. Further

details

of the Group’s management of liquidity risk are set out in note 39.4. As at 31

December 2013 and 2012, none of the covenants relating to drawn down facilities
had been breached.

AEBETHEREE T HERETERE HRITREZNN
BFER - WRARBASEEBETZEMRE  RITTAKA
AT EBMBREREN - AEERBESRAREENE
— B HEHNHI 394 c RZBE—=FR_-_FT——F+_A4
=+—8  AEEWEERERNRERGEHZL -
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27.

=t+—HIFE

CONVERTIBLE NOTES

On 10 August 2007, the Company entered into a Convertible Notes
Subscription Agreement (the “Agreement”) with Asia Financial Holdings
Limited (“AFH"”) and Asia Insurance Company, Limited (“AICL") (AICL is
a subsidiary of AFH which is controlled by the associates of Mr. CHAN
Bernard Charnwut, the non-executive director of the Company). Pursuant
to the Agreement, AFH and AICL agreed to acquire the convertible notes
(the “2007 Notes”) at HK$50,000,000 and HK$25,000,000 respectively,
in total of the principal amount of HK$75,000,000 at interest rate of 5%
per annum, payable in arrears on a quarterly basis on 31 March, 30
June, 30 September and 31 December of each year between the date of
issue of the 2007 Notes and the maturity date. The maturity date was 60
months from the date of issue of the 2007 Notes.

The 2007 Notes were not transferable and not allowed for redemption
before the maturity date. Unless previously converted, the Company
was obliged to redeem the 2007 Notes on the maturity date at the
redemption price of 110% of the principal amount of the 2007 Notes
outstanding together with accrued interest payables.

The principal amount of HK$35,000,000 (HK$25,000,000 for AFH and
HK$10,000,000 for AICL) of the 2007 Notes should be compulsorily
converted at the conversion price of HK$1.10 within seven business days
if the closing price per share of the Company was HK$1.10 or higher for
ten consecutive trading days during the period between the date of issue
of the 2007 Notes and five business days prior to the maturity date.

In addition, the 2007 Notes could be converted by the holder into
ordinary shares of the Company at any part of the principal amount of
the 2007 Notes in the multiple of HK$25,000,000, at a conversion price
of HK$1.10 per share, at any time during the period between the date of
issue of the 2007 Notes and the maturity date.

68,181,818 was the maximum number of ordinary shares that could be
converted.

Further details of the terms and conditions of the 2007 Notes were
disclosed in the announcement and circular of the Company dated 17
August 2007 and 10 September 2007 respectively.

The 2007 Notes were issued to AFH and AICL on 15 October 2007.

The fair values of the 2007 Notes were determined by the directors of the
Company with reference to the valuation performed by Norton Appraisals
Limited, a firm of independent professional valuers with appropriate
qualifications and recent experiences in the valuation of similar derivative
instruments with reference to market values.

27.

B RS ER AR M
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27. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Cont'd) 27. AIRREE(E)
The methods and assumptions applied for the valuation of the 2007 T FERGERMEAN A ERBRAT -
Notes were as follows:
The fair value of the liability component was calculated based on the BEBINAREBEERE ’Jr’iiﬁ’]ﬂixfﬁ%m%
present value contractually determined stream of future cash flows BRERERTRMNRETE - MBATW=ZAIH
discounted at the required yield, which was determined with reference FETTRRERS mtﬂ@&@l HA B Al &9 F SR
to the market interest rate for an equivalent non-convertible notes and HEE °
remaining time to maturity.
The residual amount, representing the value of the equity component, ﬁ%%ETET mEBOMERE  FTATRRERER R
was included in the equity attributable to owners of the Company in AR BIRER FE (h He o (HIBRIEERI IR ) A ©
convertible notes equity reserves, net of deferred tax.
On 5 July 2011, the Company entered into a subscription agreement RZTE——FtAAH  ARFEE NS R IM
with AFH and AICL in relation to the issue of the 2011 convertible notes R B& %t 5 511 4%50,000,0007 7T K& 25,000,0005% 7T 3
(the “2011 Notes”) at HK$50,000,000 and HK$25,000,000 respectively, T2 ——FAREBR(ZT——FEE DEIZ
in total of the principal amount of HK$75,000,000 at interest rate of 6% REWE - AL S 75,000,000 T FHEA
per annum, payable in-arrears on a quarterly basis on 31 March, 30 6% ER-_ZE——FEZRETAP=FH A BES
June, 30 September and 31 December of each year between the date #=A=+—8B ~NA=+HA - AA=tAHEKT=
of issue of the 2011 Notes and the maturity date. The maturity date is A=+—REZFZ(Ha8F e - BHAAEBE = —
36 months from the date of issue of the 2011 Notes. Pursuant to the —¢¥TF§§?? HER#EEI36(E A - IRIERE R
Subscription Agreement, the Company, AFH and AICL acknowledged AR ISR R EMNRERER REERT LS
and confirmed that it was the intention of the parties that the proceeds BEMAERET T ——FEBMSRERAREST
to be obtained from the issue of the 2011 Notes should be applied KEHER ST EFEE - Al - %E:%ﬁgt
towards the redemption of the 2007 Notes on the date of completion. FERIWETAEMAREBELRIER - R
Accordingly, notwithstanding that the 2007 Notes did not provide for “)ll%%ﬂ‘l&ﬁﬁ“)\\%ﬁﬁﬁ%i&ﬁ$ AHER=ZEE t¢
any early redemption thereof, the Company, AFH and AICL agreed that, ERFELAR  IE T LFEBHEHRLD
subject to the presentation of the original of the certificates for the 2007 AIfESERK A AR ER S EEE - R=ZT——F LA
Notes to the Company, all the 2007 Notes should be redeemed by the =+H- EEIEEJH%@%&EE/}\H% RENH T ——F
Company on the date of completion at the redemption amount. On 30 ZEREECARBAARSAEEREER T
September 2011, the subscription price of the 2011 Notes payable by tFEBRNIT BRI - RERFFE Y REH
AFH and AICL was immediately applied by the Company to set-off part of ML AT ENEES N EEEORAZSBENE
the redemption amount for redemption of the 2007 Notes. A premium on EﬁF‘J % E\.,ﬁ\6 ,885,000/8 70 B 5 F 22 M & Bk & MR
a pro rata basis upon the actual holding period over the original period R HFRBEDRNBOEEE -
and the interest accrued thereon up to the redemption date amounting
to HK$6,885,000 was paid to AFH and AICL. Upon redemption, the
2007 Notes were cancelled.
The 2011 Notes are not transferable and will not be al